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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Company Profile

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading operator in providing
integrated facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and
logistic services in south China for petroleum, liquid chemicals
and gases products, offering value-added services in its own
ports and storage tank farms.

The Group owns and operates two main liquid product
terminals, namely Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT”) in the
provision of terminal, storage, warehousing and transshipment
activities carried out by Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical
Storage & Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)”) and Dongzhou
International Terminal (“DZIT”) in the provision of terminal,
storage and transshipment activities carried out by Dongguan
Dongzhou International Petrochemical Storage Limited (* M El

‘;g;}iu).

Liquid Product Terminals

XHIT is situated in Xiao Hu lIsland, Nansha district, Guangzhou
city, Guangdong province. The Terminal was built with five
berths ranging from 500 to 30,000 dwt. The tank farm has a
site area of approximately 212,000 square metres and is
installed with 86 oil and chemical tanks of a total storage
capacity of approximately 330,000 cubic metres, out of which
240,000 cubic metres are specialized for gasoline, diesel and
similar petroleum products commonly available in trading and
consumption markets. The rest of 90,000 cubic metres tanks are
built for petrochemical products.

DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
country, Dongguan city, Guangdong province. The Terminal was
built with berths ranging from 500 to 100,000 dwt. The tank
farm has a site area of approximately 516,000 square metres
and is installed with 94 oil and chemical tanks of a total
storage capacity of approximately 260,000 cubic metres, out of
which 180,000 cubic metres are specialized for gasoline, diesel
and similar petroleum products commonly available in trading
and consumption markets. Storage tanks with capacity of
80,000 cubic metres were built for petrochemical products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRER DN

Strategic Locations

The liquid product terminals of the Group are located in the
centre of the Pearl River Delta. As Guangdong province is the
pioneer in economic development of China and our terminals
situate in the centre of the economic circle of the province,
such location edge attracts customers to engage with our
terminals for their distribution of refined oils. Apart from oil
products customers, there are customers who have
manufacturing plants in the Pearl River Delta. In their business
cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their
dangerous, poisonous and hazardous goods in designated
controlled facilities with proper licences in accordance with
governmental regulations for safety and environment reasons.
The customers may store their hazardous raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished goods in our storage facilities. Our
terminals employ experienced, professional and skillful
management teams with well-equipped features storage
hardware. The Group persistently maintain high standards in
safety and environment protection. Our terminals are fully and
properly licensed to handle wide range of dangerous and
hazardous goods. They provide convenience to customers to
move their cargoes in and out of the terminals during their
production cycle.

Very Substantial Disposal Relating to Disposal of the
Entire Equity Interest in GD (Panyu)

On 22 August 2018, Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited (“GD Petro-Chemicals”) (indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Good Ocean Enterprises Limited
and Guangdong Lian Ying Petro Chemicals Company Limited
(both are the joint venture partners of GD Petro-Chemicals in
GD (Panyu)) (collectively named as the “Sellers”) and a third
party of Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited (the
“Purchaser”) have entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (“the Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in relation to
the disposal of the entire equity interest in GD (Panyu) (the
“Disposal”) for a purchase price of RMB1.56 billion (equivalent
to HK$1.78 billion). Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, the purchase price will be paid to the Sellers in
cash in two installments. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the first installment of RMBO0.78 billion (equivalent to
HK$0.89 billion), representing 50% of the purchase price, has
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRROM

been received by the Sellers following the satisfaction of the
conditions below: (i) the Purchaser has completed due diligence
on GD (Panyu); (ii) the Sellers are not in breach of any
representations and warranties provided in the Sale and
Purchase Agreement; and (iii) the pledge of certain of the GD
(Panyu)'s dock and storage facilities and 92% of its equity
interest for the Purchaser has been registered in accordance
with the relevant governmental requirement or regulations. The
remaining price of RMBO0.78 billion (equivalent to HK$0.89
billion), representing 50% of the purchase price is expected to
be paid by the Purchaser in 2019. As a result of the Disposal,
the Company expects to realise a gain of over HK$1 billion in
2019.

Upon the completion of Disposal, the Sellers will cease to have
any interest in GD (Panyu) in which operates XHIT and its
financial results will no longer be consolidated into the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and thus were
classified as discontinued operation in this year. Details of
classification are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
The Group will primarily consist the operation of jetty and
storage facilities in DZIT for handling and storing petroleum oil
and liquid chemical products.

For details of the very substantial disposal, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 29 August 2018 and 30
November 2018 and circular dated 18 September 2018.

Key Performance Indicators

The leaseout rates and cargo throughput are the major key
performance indicators of the terminals. Higher leaseout rate
should return with higher storage income. More cargoes flows
mean more works the terminals have done thus more handling
fee income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The lease-out rates and cargo throughput of the last two years
are as follows:

Continuing operation

BEMFOHEELEEENT :

Discontinued operation
RIEEEER
XHIT
PRALE

2017

“E—tF

FELEEY
DZIT
RNALE
Operatlonal statistics 2017
LELIET —E2—+F
Liquid product terminal and Bt ERBEER
transshipment services Bk %
Number of vessels visited AR E B H
— foreign — Sty 79 106
— domestic — 7K 652 538
Number of trucks served to BlEMzES
pick up cargoes 8B 61,122 43,288
Number of drums filled EREA 3,389 3,845
Transshipment volume BHE (D)
(metric ton)
— petrochemicals — Aftm 5,134 4,214
Terminal throughput (metric ton)  EE AT £ (A K) 3,214,000 2,779,000
— port jetty throughput — BRAEHE 1,788,000 1,747,000
— loading station throughput KEARLE 1,426,000 1,032,000
Storage services FER%
Leaseout rate — oil and chemicals HHE — &R
products tem 89.0% 78.7%
Solid chemical warehousing ERILEZEE
services K%
Cargoes received (metric ton) W& g (Rm)
Cargoes issued (metric ton) BES (D)
Floor area leased out (m?) HERERR
(FAXK)
Leaseout rate i 7 %

Continuing Operation

With the introduction of new customers to utilize our oil and
chemical storage tanks, together with the advantages of our
terminals, the major operational indices showed a stable growth
at DZIT during 2018. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the number of domestic vessels visited and number of
trucks served to pick up cargoes increased by 21.2% and
41.2% respectively on a year-on-year basis. Such increase drove
the terminal throughput increased by 15.7% and the average
leaseout rate of the storage tanks increased by 10.3 percentage
points over the last year. Following the Disposal, some
customers in XHIT have moved to DZIT for continuous leasing of
the storage tanks. The Group continuously tries its best to tap
into market potentials and to expand its oil and chemical
storage volume.
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+15.7 3,234,000 3,659,000 -11.6
+2.3 2,198,000 2,768,000 -20.6
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B B
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89.3% 94.0% -4.7

% points

B

BERSEEK
HRSIAFEFLEREMH A BRI
G ZBRERMOISEED  —F— )N\
FXELEEEBRIREMAICEREE L
E-REBEE2-_Z—/N\F+=-A=+—H
IEFE AArMERSEREREY
ZEBEHERE DR ER212%K
412% ~ZEREDERATERITHE
%¥%ﬁﬂ?“ﬂf£¢ﬁMB7%
103EE B - NEEFIERE - o)
ﬁEME%EﬁE%%%HE%? A
BHETGE AEEEBERSEAEN
WM BRe W IE Xomm ML E R ETTF

E°



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Discontinued Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the major
operational statistics of XHIT indicated an obvious decline. Upon
the announcement of the Disposal, the customers were notified
in advance to terminate the storage contracts in accordance
with the terms of their contracts. The number of customers
have gradually reduced that resulted the decrease of the
terminals throughput and the leaseout rate of the storage tanks
since September 2018.

SEGMENT REVENUE

The terminals earn storage income by leasing their storage
tanks to customers based on the storage tank size engaged.
Apart from this, they collect handling charges when providing
services in moving cargoes in and out from the terminals for
customers, either by water in the jetties or by road from the
loading stations. Furthermore, the terminals provide ancillary
services such as tank cleaning, waste treatment and blending to
customers and earn respective fees for the services rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had two
reportable segments: one continuing reportable segment of DZIT
and one discontinued reportable segments of XHIT. The
breakdown of reportable segment revenues are as follows:

Continuing Operation

RIEEEER
RBE-_F-N\F+-_A=1+—HLLF
B /NRACENEEEE RGBSR
BTR BHEFERAEHER TPRE
BRBRFIEENBAKLLETFAHN - B
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|§X

% o
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ZH -

HE-_FT-—N\F+_HA=1T—8BLF
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DEB e AIRED WM ANBHELT

Discontinued Operation

DzIT XHIT
RMELE MRECE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—g- 0% ——tf —g-0% —E-tf

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %

FHT THL FHT T %

Storage and transshipment income  f3 77 RE &M A 139,790 98.8 108,411 97.9 122,669 80.5 134,021 82.0
Port income BOKA 1,766 12 2,301 2.1 3,423 22 3,657 22
Solid chemical warehousing income ~ El®{L2REERA — — — — 26,355 17.3 25,763 15.8
141,556 100.0 110,712 100.0 152,447 100.0 163,441 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Continuing Operation

With regards to the continuous introduction of new customers
and increase of leaseout rate of storage tanks, the revenue
from the provision of terminal, storage and transshipment
services for the liquid products in DZIT increased from
HK$110.7 million to HK$141.6 million, representing an increase
of 27.9% over the last year. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the storage income for oil and liquid
chemicals products increased from HK$85.6 million to HK$108.9
million, representing an increase of 27.2% as compared with
last year. Higher leaseout rate returned higher storage income.
In addition, the active cargoes flows drove the increase of
handling fee income from HK$20.6 million to HK$24.7 million,
increased by 19.9% on yearly basis.

Discontinued Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from
discontinued operation was about HK$152.4 million,
representing a decrease of 6.7% as compared to HK$163.4
million over the last year. Following the Disposal, the customers
were notified in advance to terminate the storage contracts in
accordance with the terms of the contracts. As such, number of
customers have dropped since September 2018 that resulted the
decrease of storage income.

OUTLOOK

In 2018, revenue from XHIT decreased slightly by 6.7% as
compared with that in 2017 due to termination of the storage
service contract before Disposal. However, DZIT has increased by
more than 20% in terms of the leaseout rate of storage tanks,
cargo throughput and operating income, that has reached the
highest level in the past five years. In the current petrochemical
market that generally remains slow, the Company’s continued
good performance reflects its leading position in the
petrochemical terminal and storage industry. In 2018, the
Company disposed the entire interest in GD (Panyu) to
Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited. The Group expects
that transaction to be completed in the first half of 2019 and
recognise a gain of over HK$1 billion. Ample cash assets will
lay a solid foundation for the rapid development of the Group
in the future.
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Continued Expansion and Enhancement of Storage
Business of Petrochemical Terminal

Disposal of GD (Panyu) has brought new development
opportunities to DZIT: 1) certain premium customers, such as
ExxonMobil, Chevron Phillips and other multinational
companies, transferred all or most of their long-term storage
service business in GD (Panyu) to DZIT, further consolidating a
stable source of premium customers for DZIT, 2) some
experienced managers and operators from GD (Panyu) will also
be employed by EJMEBR, allowing MBI to gain more
advantages over human resources; 3) given the Group's
improving capital strength, DZIT Phase Il will also commence
the actual construction stage according to the construction
plan. In terms of storage capacity, revenue and profitability,
DZIT Phase Il under the construction plan will comprehensively
outpace the sold XHIT, thus enabling the Company to maintain
and enhance its leading position in the terminal business.

Commencement of Gasoline and Diesel Retail Business

In early 2019, the Company and a local state-owned enterprise
in Guangzhou commenced the main construction of a filling
station, which is currently progressing smoothly and expected to
be operated in mid-2019. The completion and operation of the
filling station in Zengcheng marks the official entry of the
Company into the gasoline and diesel retail business. The
Company is planning to build (including acquisition or lease)
more filling stations to expand the scale of gasoline and diesel
trade in a rapid manner. The Company plans to develop the
gasoline and diesel retail and wholesale business into a new
business segment of the Group within two to three years,
which is expected to surpass the traditional terminal business in
terms of operating income and profitability and become one of
the major sources of the Company’s performance growth.

In 2019, the Company will strive for milestones for its business
development by effectively capturing and utilizing the favorable
opportunities arising from the development of Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. Besides consolidating its
traditional business, the Company will vigorously explore new
business areas to achieve the leap-forward development of the
Company.

BEMAMELALLREARER

HEBRG(EB)E  BREMAILESK
THHEREE : DE2>EERF
N REHhEE SHEFFNEHEE
AR HEAEEERGES)NEE KR
PRBERRFES #BE=RMAL
r AEMOLEEEMTEENEER

2B (EFE) LKREENER
Aaﬂ%ﬁA;mhx%F$WEW
EMTEMBBRANERNES : 3)E
RAEEES KA ITE - ZMNALE
_%L SHBENERAREATEER

BEER - RMALE S ERAEBE
ER - WATRNEE S LH K 2B
EHEN/NEAE  KMmESRSL

BINARRRIEBERE T ERLEN -

ARMEBEXBRREE

ARREEMNT - TEBEREERZ
WM ER — TN FN2mEE -
BRTERIEHN BHRHER T —NAFH
H IR AGE & o 3Bk 0 0m Uh B AR E AR
wEARNAERNEATRMEERKR
o RRREARERR (BHEKESE
B)EZHImE - DU RER TS M E
HHRR - KRB EIEME=ZF AR
HHTEMRBRBEERKAANEE —

E 25 e EBIRE - B X WATEF
KTPEEBHERBRERMAAERR

AIEBERERNTERIRZ — -

T NEREARABERELTAR
BREBEZN—F ARAHNBIEE
BRAERERNENEE  ERER
MEBOER L KOFEBHNEBE
B BRARABEBAHR -

—E-N\FEFER 11




HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED - 3

Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW 5t % 0 R
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’'s #HE-_Z—N\F+_-_A=+—HItF
financial performance from continuing operations are set out as & @ REBNEERKLEBNTEERR

below: BFFIBEIMT
2018 2017 Changes
—E-NF —F—tF =l
(Restated)
(&E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FATT
Continuing operations FERKEER
Revenue A 141,556 110,712 +27.9
Gross profit £ A 33,592 10,310 +225.8
Loss before interest and tax & & F5 Bl &5 18
("LBIT") (f'LBIT 1) (49,883) (26,889) +85.5
Depreciation e 66,011 64,939 +1.7
Finance costs 7 745 PR AR 39,633 41,409 -4.3
Earnings before interest, tax, FRF 8 « 18 - 1 &
depreciation and T2 #8585 A & A
amortisation (“EBITDA") ([ EBITDA ) 16,128 38,050 -57.6
Gross profit margin EF = 23.7% 9.3% +14.4
% points
ERai]
Net loss margin FEEX -69.7% —-61.7% +8.0
% points
ERai]
Loss attributable to equity N Q A AR R FE AL
shareholders of the &5 18
Company (94,757) (64,866) +46.1
Basic and diluted loss per FRERNREE
share (HK cents) & 18 (L) (2.54) (1.74) +46.0
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Revenue and Gross Profit Margin

During the year, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations was approximately HK$141.6 million (2017:
HK$110.7 million), representing an increase of 27.9% on a
year-on-year basis. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase of the storage and handling fee income which was
driven by the increase of leaseout rate of storage tanks at
about 10.3 percentage points and the introduction of new
customers in DZIT during the year. Gross profit and gross profit
margin from continuing operations was approximately HK$33.6
million (2017: HK$10.3 million) and 23.7% (2017: 9.3%),
increased by 225.8% and 14.4 percentage points as compared
with last year. The improvement was mainly attributable to the
increase of storage and handling income during the year.

Loss for the Year

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company from
continuing operations was approximately HK$94.8 million
(2017: HK$64.9 million), representing an increase of 46.1%
over the prior year. Increase of loss was mainly attributable to
the provision for doubtful debts of approximately HK$38.4
million in respect of long outstanding balances past due from a
customer (please refer to note 14(b) to the financial statements
for details) and equity settled share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$6.8 million charged to income statements
during the year. As a result of the increase of loss, EBITDA
from continuing operations reduced to HK$16.1 million (2017:
HK$38.1 million) during the year.

Finance costs

During the vyear, finance costs from continuing operations
amounted to HK$39.6 million (2017: HK$41.4 million) which
were mainly incurred on certain of the Group’s outstanding
bank loans.

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes
for the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018 was 25%
(2017: 25%).

Basic and diluted loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share of continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were 2.54 Hong Kong cents
(2017: 1.74 Hong Kong cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRER DN

LIQUIDITY, GEARING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$881 million (2017:
HK$41 million). Most of the funds were held in HK dollar, RMB
and US dollar.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,955 million (2017: HK$1,315 million) and
net current liabilities of approximately HK$78 million (2017: net
current assets of HK$26 million). The current ratio as at 31
December 2018 of the Group was 0.94 (2017: 1.21). The
decrease of current ratio was mainly attributable that
consideration received from a disposal of a subsidiary of
HK$890 million (being 50% of the purchase price) was
recognised as other payable at 31 December 2018. Upon the
completion of the Disposal, such consideration will be
recognised as income. The current ratio will be improved
significantly.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$880 million (2017: HK$987 million). The total
owners’ deficit of the Group as at 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately HK$84.4 million (2017: total
owners’ equity of HK$8.4 million). The gearing ratio (defined as
total liabilities to total assets) as at 31 December 2018 was
104.3% (2017: 99.4%). Upon receipt of total consideration of
the transaction, the Group will be able to repay the
outstanding bank borrowings. The Board expected that the
liquidity and capital structure of the Group will be substantially
improved.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group met its working capital requirement
principally from its business operation. The Group has been
taking various initiatives to improve the Group’s operating cash
flows to cope with future daily operation and future repayment
of bank loans. Due attention will be paid to the capital and
debt markets as well as the latest developments of the Group
in order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with the Purchaser for a
purchase price of RMB1.56 billion. The Board expected that the
proceeds from disposal of GD (Panyu) will improve the Group's
operating cash flows and reduce the Group's debts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRROM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year, the Group entered a very substantial disposal
relating to disposal of the entire equity interest in GD (Panyu)
as mentioned on page 6 and 7 in this section, further details of
which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Save for the very substantial disposal as mentioned above, there
was no other significant investments, nor there was no any
other material acquisitions or disposals during the year. The
Group did not have any future plans for materials investments
nor addition of capital assets during the year ended 31
December 2018.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGE

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as
well. Management is of the opinion that the Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange rate risks is not significant, and hedging by
means of derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.

As the exchange rate of RMB depreciated as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred an
exchange loss of HK$11.3 million (2017: exchange gain of
HK$12.3 million) on translation of financial statements of its
PRC subsidiaries.

CHARGE ON GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group has provided the lender with certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment as collaterals for the banking
facilities granted. For details, please refer to note 17(c) to the
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group had consideration received in advance of
HK$0.89 billion from the Purchaser relating to disposal of GD
(Panyu) according to the Sale and Purchase Agreement and
such amount was secured by certain of the GD (Panyu)’s dock
and storage facilities and 92% of its equity interest as an
indemnity arrangement for the Purchaser as the transaction was
not completed as at 31 December 2018. For details, please
refer to note 16 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRER DN

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 462 employees (2017: 476), 448 (2017: 462) of
which worked for the terminals. The Group remunerates its
employees based on industry practices and individual
performance and experience. On top of the basic remuneration,
discretionary award or bonus (in cash or other forms in kind) as
may be determined by the Board may be granted to selected
employees by reference to the Group’s as well as individual's
performances. Every year, the Group devises a budget which
states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group’s employees to contribute their best efforts and to
make maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance
with the relevant government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to cover social insurance, including but not
limited to retirement, medical, workman compensation and
unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every
qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies
and staff benefits, the Group hopes to provide a reasonable
welfare for each qualified employee.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Details of capital commitment are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018,
contingent liabilities.

the Group has no material

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Details of events after the balance sheet date are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAERHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 59, has been the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He has
many years of experience in China business particularly in the
provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals,
properties investments and developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 58, has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2016.
Mr. Yang joined the Company in 2012. Prior to that, he held
various senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general
manager in China Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and
deputy chairman and executive director in Sinopec Kantons
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 934), the securities of which is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Besides, he has extensive experience in
international trade of petroleum and chemical commodities. Mr.
Yang graduated from Beijing Normal University with a degree in
Economics. He also holds a Master's degree in Project
Management from University of Management and Technology.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 51, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since April 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Financial
Controller — PRC of the Company, the Deputy Chairlady and
Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited (“GDPC"), Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd (“GD (Panyu)”) and =M REMBEE ALE
AR AR (“EMBEE"). She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to
that, she had worked in various government departments and
large State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of
Guangdong Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong
Kong Limited, etc. She has more than 25 years of experience in
financial management. Ms. Liu graduated from Sun Yat-sen
University in 1989 with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms.
Liu also holds the auditor qualification certificate of speciality
and technology issued by the Ministry of Personnel and
National Audit Office of the People’s Republic of China
("PRC").
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSNEEAEBEE

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 53, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang joined the Company as
Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. He has many years of
experience in petrochemical industry. He has expertise in
petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar with
financial accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang
also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical project
management. He had served China Petrochemical Corporation
and held various key positions such as the chief financial officer
of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of the Hong Kong branch. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
and obtained the qualification of engineer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 62, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
and holds a Master's degree in Business Administration from
The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li had worked for
Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is now
an executive director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited
and the chief financial officer of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
Besides, he has been re-designated from a non-executive
director to an executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings
Limited (stock code: 124) in 2012 and was appointed as
company secretary in March 2017. He is currently a
non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock
code: 270), an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (stock code: 604) and China South City
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1668), the securities of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned,
Mr. Li was appointed as the Standing Committee Member of
the 12th Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in January 2018.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEABEE

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 47, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is
also the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns
a certified public accounting practice. He has extensive
experience in general assurance and business advisory services
in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has
extensive experience in public listings in Hong Kong and
Singapore, mergers and acquisition as well as corporate finance.
He holds a Master degree in Business Administration from the
Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is now the independent
non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8137) and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company
Limited (stock code: 660), the securities of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned, Mr. Chan
has been the joint company secretary of Zhejiang Cangnan
Instrument Group Company Limited (stock code: 1743) since
July 2017, the securities of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange in January 2019.

Ms. Hai Hiu Chu, aged 47, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since October 2017. She is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms. Hai is an executive
director, the chief executive officer and one of the controlling
shareholders of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited
("“Bamboos Health Care”) (stock code: 2293) (the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange). She was also
appointed as a chairman of Bamboos Health Care in August
2018. Ms. Hai co-founded Bamboos Health Care Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries.

Ms. Hai obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Pharmacy in Chinese
Medicine and a Master's degree of Science in Chinese
Medicines from The University of Hong Kong. She has
completed a program in EMBA and obtained a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained an Enrolled Nurse qualification from
the Nursing Council of Hong Kong.

Ms. Hai has over 20 years of experience in the medical field
and the pharmaceutical industry. She has served various
directorship roles in various companies, including Bamboos
Limited and Bamboos Education — School for Talents Limited.
Ms. Hai currently serves as a director in each of Hong Kong
Health Care Federation. She is also a guest professor in
Guangdong Pharmaceutical University. Also, Ms. Hai was
appointed as a member of Registration Committee of
Chiropractors Council in April 2018.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSNEEAEBEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 50, is the Director and General Manager
of BIMEIEE. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has
extensive knowledge and experience in technology and
operating management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He
also holds a Master degree of corporate management. He is
now fully responsible for the management of the infrastructure
and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 42, is the Director and Deputy
General Manager of GD (Panyu). He graduated from /& & f/d
B4 in 1997 and joined GD (Panyu) in the same year. Mr.
Huang has solid knowledge and many years of experience in
technology, construction project and operating management of
oil and petrochemicals storage.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 45, is the Director and Deputy
General Manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his
Master’s degree in Business Administration from University of
San Francisco. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many
years of experience in trading and marketing in the business of
storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 47, is the Director and Deputy General
Manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang
Institute of Commerce and majored in oil storage and
transportation operation. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr.
Han has many years of experience in business operation and
import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 62, is the Deputy General Manager of GD
(Panyu). Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the
deputy general manager of sales department of A {LEE R
A]. He was engaged in the sales of petroleum products for a
long time and has extensive experience in the sales and
marketing management of petroleum products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 51, is the Deputy Financial Controller of
GD (Panyu) and the Director and Deputy Financial Controller of
FMBEEE. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International
Certified Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certificate Public Accountants and has professional accountant
qualification in PRC. He has over 15 years financial
management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and
has worked as a senior project manager in a renowned
accounting firm.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEABEE

Mr. Choy Chak Wa, Peter, aged 61, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since September 2017. Mr.
Choy graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
holds a Master’'s degree in Management from Imperial College
London. He is a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Choy has held numerous executive
positions across a wide spectrum of industries including
manufacturing, university education, non-profits organisation,
garment, audio-visual equipment trading, as well as civil
engineering consultancy company. Prior to joining the
Company, he held as a Regional Controller in Fugro Holdings
(HK) Limited. He has extensive experience in accounting and
financial management in both Hong Kong and across the
Greater China Region.

On top of his professional career, Mr. Choy was awarded the
Bronze Medal by The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants to recognise his outstanding contribution. He is
currently a member of the HKSAR Inland Revenue Department
Users’” Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 43, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since February 2017. Ms. Lam joined
the Company in 2008 and currently is the Financial Controller
of the Company. Prior to that, she worked in a Singapore
based company which is a subsidiary of Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 040), the securities of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lam has extensive experience
in accounting and financial management for the listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore and has worked in
numerous reputable international accounting firms. Ms. Lam
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy, she is also a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of
its business in compliance with the principles and code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the corporate
governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is of the view
that throughout the year, the Company has complied with the
CG Code except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.4.1
and E.1.2 and which deviations are explained in the relevant
part of this report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies
and plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the chief executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experiences necessary for independent decision making and
fulfilling its business needs.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. David An (Chairman and Member
of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Liu Zhijun
Mr. Zhang Lei
Ms. Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (resigned on 23 February 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of
Nomination Committee and Member of
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Ms. Hai Hiu Chu (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors (“INEDs"”) with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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INEDs

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all INEDs make
various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each INED in respect of his/her independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has assessed his/her independence and
concluded that all INEDs are independent within the definition
of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment and succession
planning of directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The INEDs (save for Ms. Hai Hiu Chu) did not have a
specific term of appointment before 22 January 2019.

Ms. Hai Hiu Chu entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years, subject to, inter alia,
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three
years and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association.

On 22 January 2019, each of the INEDs entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
from their date of appointment. The Company has complied
with the Code Provision A.4.1 since 22 January 2019.

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and article of
association, all directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the
Company’s general meeting and any directors appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During
the year, directors attended seminars and training sessions
arranged by various professional institutes and bodies. In
addition, relevant reading materials including the updates on
the business, operations, corporate governance, legal and
regulatory matters have been provided to all directors for their
reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Thirteen Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director at
the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

RBEE-_F-NF+-_A=+—HILHF
B BEFENEFTE RE2ZBE #
Mé%ﬁﬁgﬁéaggimﬂAﬁf
(BEwRHFNEBEMETFTBATA)RL
SRS

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHALE EETEERY
Annual Extraordinary
Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
Directors Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Bz 8 REZBEE FHZEE ENRZET RRBEFXE REHBIXE
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. David An (Chairman) HELE(EE) 1213 NATEA 22 NATEA 0N 0/1
Mr. Yang Dong BREE 13/13  NATER N/ATE A N/ATE A n n
Ms. Liu Zhijun BEEn+ 1313 NATER  NATER  NATEAR 11 11
Mr. Zhang Lei REEAE 13/13  NATER N/ATE A N/ATE A 0/1 0/1
INEDs BUFHTEF
Mr. Li Wai Keung TRBEE 13/13 33 212 5/5 11 11
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony ~ BRIRE%EE 13/13 33 22 5/5 n n
Ms. Hai Hiu Chu EBEHRRT 13/13 33 22 5/5 11 11

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other
directors during the year pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.7
of the CG Code.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior executives
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or a director, will be considered and dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s
memorandum and articles of association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie is the Company Secretary of the
Company. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The biographic of
Ms. Lam is set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) in August 2013.

All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates for Board membership will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
directors. Two of them are female, three of them are INEDs,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process.
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Dividend Policy
The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on

21

December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in

deciding whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, inter alia:-

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
shareholders’ interests;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the other members of the Group;

the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on
equity and financial covenants to which the Group is
subject;

possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;

taxation considerations;

statutory and regulatory restrictions;

general business conditions and strategies;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and

other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

28

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

X b\ﬁ%
EFEgRN T N\F+_A-+—HBHEK
AN LS B R (TR ﬁﬁD o IR Z B

BR EFREEEARFEAMBRBIKM
%‘%%%W%a%f Hp g% —

e AEEMNERIBHPHERI
o RER#Em:

e ARARAEEMEMERER
AR BE B ) e AT 0 IR R 4

o AREZEHEIILE - BOKDE R
T LA R AN AR £ O B S IR
P BE 2 7K

o HAEBEERAATREEZELEY
=,

. MASENERATS
o] BBk B PR )

& i bl B 1

e AKEEZEHZE
*X%%ﬁ%’

e E/\ /ff?ﬁi E#Z//lb@) f‘t\ﬁj(/ﬁ&
KRR Z A IER

e BBEE:
o EAEREGRRH
o  EREBMEMRM LR

o EREEBEMRN AREXBOEE
B AR EHARBRERE
BRA MR AE T ENE AR
HNEAEE ]

e EFSRRBEMNHEMAER-

ARAEHBERANZBEBE  XAR
BRMNNEEENBENMEAREE
o R RIEREBREBBE - B
ﬁﬁl?%ﬁﬂﬁ@%%ﬁm% REUN

NEHAEMABSEINRE - &/
AN AR A A &I RE %
THEIRRE -



Corporate Governance Report
TERERBSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of the Chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEO") should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company complies with the Code Provision A.2.1, the
positions of the Chairman and CEO are segregated and are held
by Mr. David An and Mr. Yang Dong respectively. These
positions have clearly defined separate responsibilities. Mr. David
An will focus on the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group, whereas Mr. Yang Dong will be
responsible for the overall management, administrative
functions and day-to-day business operations of the Group.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’'s website and
are available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three INEDs are the members of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of
the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessment of the
independence of the INEDs.
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The Nomination Committee will reference to the Board
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the
Group on 21 December 2018 for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorships.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and
recommend candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving
due consideration to criteria, having due regard to the benefits
of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how, sufficient time to effectively carry out their
duties, their services on other listed and non-listed companies
should be limited to reasonable numbers, qualifications
including accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industries the Company’s business is involved in, independence,
reputation for integrity, potential contributions that the
individual(s) can bring to the Board and commitment to
enhance and maximize shareholders’ value.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a director in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

(@) By giving due consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the
search effort;

(b)  To consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing directors, advertising, recommendations from an
independent agency firm and proposals from shareholders
of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria;

() To adopt any process it deems appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks, presentations and third-party
reference checks;

(d)  Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

(e) To make the recommendation to the Board in relation to

the proposed appointment and the proposed
remuneration package;
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(f)  The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees;

(g) In order to be eligible to be elected as director at any
general meeting, the candidate should be recommended
by the Board; or a notice in writing by a member of the
Company given his intention to propose such candidate,
and also a notice in writing by the candidate of his
willingness to be elected; and

(h) In the context of re-appointment of retiring directors by
giving due consideration to the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring directors including
his attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board; and whether the retiring
director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the criteria, thereafter
recommend retiring director(s) to the Board for re-
appointment. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee convened three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2018 to (i) ensure that the Board has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet
the requirements of the business of the Company; (ii) review
and recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for
re-election at the Company’s 2018 annual general meeting; (iii)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and make recommendations to the Board; and (iv) to review
and recommend the Nomination Policy and Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and all three INEDs are the
members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Li Wai
Keung is the chairman of the committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.
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The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the CEO of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy, structure and
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met twice to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and senior executives during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all three INEDs (including two
INEDs who possess the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise) and Mr.
Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items before submission to the
Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their
fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors.

()  To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems.

(d)  To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control measures, including the
functions of account and financial reporting, reviewing
the adequacy of the Group’s human resources, staff
qualifications and experiences, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting functions.

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters.
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018 to (i) review audited annual financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and unaudited interim
financial results for the half-year ended 30 June 2018; (ii)
review financial reporting, risk management and internal control
and compliance procedures; (iii) review the scope of work and
make recommendations on the appointment of the auditors;
and (iv) review the terms of reference of Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee and the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions as disclosed in the
section of “Independent Auditor's Report” that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of directors and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’
INDIVIDUALS
All the directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in
notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements, respectively.

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the ““Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and all of
them have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

ERLZESREMEREERUNEITHRE
HE WA RREETERBZRNEYIEE
2R

JiS —NFE+tA=+—BL*#F
g *ViﬁaﬁﬁTﬁﬁéﬁ PACG)
ENBEE_ZT—tF+-_A=t+—HL
FREZEECFREMBRERBE-ZF
—NERA=ZTHIEFFZREEZD
WMMBHEE WEHVHERSE  BRE
BUAFMAREZERARRER  (INEHT
FHE LT ERBEMER R EE  Kv)
EHEZZEGNBESRE -

BERZEENEFTANTAERTEES
HHREREERBLZBORE]E
BN A EE §ﬁ$"7¢i%’&%ﬁﬁﬁ
TFREEREM -

JL% E/n
%%QE,\ETT/&\¥M
FED3.MEFTE 2 B aE -

y8 5T RIS RIME 3

RE-F-\E+-A=+—AL*%
g EFERIRERADARLEE
AHBEREL  EEMENREEE
$HR URBHALTDABRARE
P AR BB E B ER

ESVFHRIERESFMAL

EREZNARFAZEGREREAR -
BEEMRAMEICARETTFME AL

RaFHMALTREZE-FFI5T D5l
BN HRRM TS -
HERGBRESTH

ARBEHRM ETRAKER10PTE 2 L
METAEFTETESFXZHEFEETAH
(ME£=pR) -
ARRERERERHFLENER M
BER2HEEARSRBEE_T—N\F

+tZ A=+t BLEEREFE—EHEETE
RS U

—E-N\FEFER 33




Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company.

No incidents of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 70 to 77.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee
has communicated with external auditors of the Company to
understand if there is any material control deficiency.
Nevertheless, the Company will review the need for an internal
audit function on an annual basis.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets of
the Company and reviewing its effectiveness on an annual
basis.
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The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation
of responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Group's risk management framework adapts an integrated
bottom-up and top-down risk review process. The top-down
risk review process covers overseeing, identification, assessment
and mitigation of risk at corporate level while the bottom-up
risk review process covers identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at business unit level and across functional
areas. The integrated risk review process is to enable
comprehensive identification and prioritization of all material
risks throughout the Group, escalation of material risks at the
right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among the
management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation efforts.

The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing
assurance to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its
own view on effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based
on the information and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular
review and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate
these risks. The management of the Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee.
Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls
Effectiveness

During the year under review, the Group has performed the risk
management and internal control review of the Group. The
Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls on all
major operations and considered the Group’s internal control
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance, thereby
minimizing risks and allowing the Group’s business objectives to
be achieved optimally. The Board and the Audit Committee
considered that the risk management and internal control
system was operating effectively during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions proposed at the
shareholders’ meetings are voted by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. The poll results are also posted on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association, general meetings shall be convened on
the written requisition of any two or more members of the
Company deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event that the Company
ceases to have such a principal place of business, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company.

Meeting by

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the
requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the extraordinary general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for
shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the

Company, please refer to the procedures posted on the
Company’s website.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre,
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders and
the Board. The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the
chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) and
where applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available at the general meetings to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the directors were
unable to attend the last annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meeting held on 24 May 2018 and 8
October 2018 respective due to business engagement. They will
use their best endeavour to attend all future shareholders’
meetings of the Company.
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During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its memorandum and articles of association. The
Company places great emphasis to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors as the Company’s policy to
maintain timely and effective communications with their
shareholders. This is crucial aspect of good corporate
governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory regime.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are posted.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) have pleasure in
presenting their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group’s business are
set out in the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from page 4 to 16 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
from 78 to 79.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment
of bank loan of the Group and the Dividend Policy of the
Company as set out in the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 28, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out on the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
in note 22 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$139 million (2017: HK$153
million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 10 to
the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details in movement in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Ms. Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (resigned on 23 February 2018)

Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Ms. Hai Hiu Chu

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association, Mr. Yang Dong, Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr.
Li Wai Keung shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this annual report, no directors are considered to have
interests, either directly or indirectly, in a business which
competes or is likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the Company is currently in force and was in force
throughout this year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and their associates or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

BRH#E

Long
Name of director Capacity Positions

EENA L) #e

Mr. David An Founder of a discretionary trust 2,548,203,980
HELE FHEETABA (Note FffzE)
Beneficial owner 218,390,000

EEBAA

Note: Mr. David An (“Mr. An") was taken to be interested in those
shares by virtue of being a founder of a discretionary trust.
Those shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by
Extreme Wise Investments Ltd (”“Extreme Wise”) and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company
Ltd (“Vand Petro-Chemicals”). Both companies are wholly-owned
by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd. (“Julius Baer”) which is
a trustee of the discretionary trust. By virtue of SFO, Mr. An is
deemed to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.
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ARBEREE0I0E T ZEER

Approximate percentage to
the issued share capital
of the Company

EEATERITREAZ
BRBED
Short Long Short
positions Positions positions
KR #e KR
Nil & 68.27% Nil 4%
Nil & 5.85% Nil &

e @ EEE(BHLEED) AR2#ETER
AMBERABRZERO P HEEER © %
Z£ [ F /5209,773,980/% 1 Extreme Wise
Investments Ltd ([ Extreme Wise J)
}22,338,430,000/% Hi Vand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd([Vand Petro-
Chemicals NE##F B - MK R Al A
Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd.
(Tulius Baer ) 2 & %H - HA2EET
ZRTEANREBEES KBS - &L
A % R A T 542,548,203,9800% % 17 R
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company” and “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2018
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debts securities (including debentures) of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
children under the age of 18, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiary, or holding company or a subsidiary of the
Company's holding company a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not enter into or
have any management and administration contracts in respect
of the whole or any principal business of the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed
as connected and related party transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company had received from each of the INEDs the annual
written confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
INEDs are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, shareholders (other than directors of
the Company) who had, or were deemed to have interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

B3 B
Long
Positions
)

Name of shareholder

BRRAEMH

Mr. An & &£ 2,766,593,980
Julius Baer 2,548,203,980
Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000
Extreme Wise 209,773,980

Note: The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. An
personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies
are wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust
and Mr. An is a founder of a discretionary trust. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980
shares. Mr. An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-
Chemicals and the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
directors of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximate percentage to
the issued share capital
of the Company
EEARNERTREZ

BRAEDH

Long
Positions

)

Short
positions
RE

Short
positions
RE

Nil &
Nil &
Nil &
Nil &

Nil &
Nil &
Nil &
Nil &

74.12%
68.27%
62.65%

5.62%
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
year or subsisting at the end or the year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the
“scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme. The
summary of the scheme is stated as follows:

1.

44

Purpose:

The purpose of the scheme is to enable the Company to
recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract
resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group.

Participants:

Under the scheme, the Board may at their discretion
grant options to any eligible participant including any
employee, director, consultant, advisor, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or services
to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as
may be determined by the directors from time to time to
subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “shares”).
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Total number of shares available for issue under the
scheme and percentage of issued share capital at the
date of approval of the scheme:

The maximum number of shares in respect to which
options may be granted under the scheme is
373,263,800 shares, being 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on the date of adopting the
scheme. The limit may be refreshed at any time provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the scheme and any other scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

On 30 August 2018, the Board granted the share options
to the Company's directors and senior management to
subscribe for a total of 127,500,000 ordinary shares of
the Company. The exercise price of each option is
HK$0.236 per share. The options are exercisable from 30
August 2019 to 29 August 2028. Further details of share
option granted were set out in note 21 to the financial
statements. As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the scheme
were 373,263,800 (including options for 127,500,000
shares that have been granted but not yet exercised),
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or INEDs in excess of
issued share capital of the Company or with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the shareholders of the Company.
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The periods within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

The share options may be exercised at any time during
the exercise period. All options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with
the scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant
of the share option to the tenth anniversary of the date
of grant as may be determined by the directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments of
calls must or may be made:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each option
grantee.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the directors, provided
that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange on the date of the grant of the share
options; (ii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
the grant of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The remaining life:

The scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years
from adoption of such scheme and expires on 27
December 2022.
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Details of the movements of the share options during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set as below:

Eligible person

Executive directors
Mr. Yang Dong

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

INEDs

Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
Ms. Hai Hiu Chu

Employees

During the year, no share option was exercised, cancelled or
lapsed by any of the directors and senior management (2017:
Nil) and the number of share options outstanding at 31

HITES
BERE
AxELL

BUFHTES
FRBRAE
BRI (E L
ERRLL

Date of grant

RHAH
D/M/YYYY
R/R/&

30/8/2018
30/8/2018
30/8/2018

30/8/2018
30/8/2018
30/8/2018

30/8/2018

December 2018 was 127,500,000 (2017: Nil).

B

Period during which

share options are
exercisable

BRET TR
HmE
D/M/YYYY
A/R/%

30/8/2019-29/8/2028
30/8/2019-29/8/2028
30/8/2019-29/8/2028

30/8/2019-29/8/2028
30/8/2019-29/8/2028
30/8/2019-29/8/2028

30/8/2019-29/8/2028

Exercise
price per
share

(=13

T\

HK$
B

0.236
0.236
0.236

0.236
0.236
0.236

0.236

BE-T—\F+-A=+—BIFE
B0 SIS 00

Number of share
options granted
during the year
and outstanding
at 31/12/2018
ERRHRK
R=ZB-N\%¥
TZAZt—-HEXK

TRHBRERE

20,000,000
18,000,000
18,000,000

3,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000
65,000,000

62,500,000

127,500,000
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the percentage of
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers comprised approximately 23.3% of the Group’s total
turnover and the percentage of the turnover attributable to the
Group's largest customer were approximately 8.6% of the
Group’s total turnover. The percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
comprised approximately 42.2% of the Group’s total purchases
and the percentage of the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 15.3% of the
Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the
directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association or the laws
of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of emolument policy for the employees of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 are set out in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report on
page 16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the vyear ended 31 December 2018, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2018, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2018, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal
proceedings that need to be disclosed.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by the terminals are hazardous,
safety and environment protection measures and equipment are
regarded as the most vital and critical importance to the
success of the Group. The Group is committed to the long-term
sustainability of the environment and communities in which it
operates. As a responsible corporation, to the best knowledge
of the Directors of the Company, the Group has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection during the year ended 31 December 2018. For the
financial risk management, please refer to the note 23 to the
financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
the applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of
the directors of the Company, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group's business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and
shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its
key stakeholders.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant to
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
the INEDs of the Company.

The summary of duties and works of the Audit Committee is
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - ERERRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to
provide an overview of the Group’s management on significant
issues affecting the operation, and the performance of the
Group in terms of environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide” and has complied with “comply or explain”
provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in
respect of corporate social responsibility, covering its operating
activities which are considered as material by the Group —
provision of terminal and storage facilities and services for
liquid petrochemical products in South China. With the aim to
optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the Report,
the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record
relevant data as well as implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@hansenergy.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is a leading midstream player in providing integrated
facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic
services in South China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and
gases products, offering value-added services in its own ports
and storage tank farms. To maintain a competitive edge, it is
crucial that the Company stays healthy and fits for the future.
Our long-term success depends on our efforts in managing the
environmental and social risks.

The Group stores energy and chemical products that are
important in people’s daily life, yet can endanger their health
and the environment if stored or handled inappropriately. As a
service provider, our role and responsibility are to provide safe,
efficient and clean chemical storage and handling services. The
Group abides by existing rules and regulations as a minimum
and adopts best practices whenever possible. The Group also
aims to achieve sustainable development in our daily operation
by maximising operational safety, by minimising our
environmental impact, by training and developing our people as
well as sharing best practices, and by both encouraging and
maintaining an open dialog with our stakeholders as a
responsible member of the communities in which we operate.
In 2018, the Group is one of the first batch of enterprises
which starts the “Together for Sustainability” (TfS) certification
work in the People’s Republic of China, and successfully
finished and passed the assessment and audit to join TfS. This
can help the Group to assess and improve sustainability supplier
sourcing practices.

The Group strives for excellence to make the right choices to
serve the long-term interests of all our stakeholders, from
customers, business partners and shareholders, to employees,
local communities and society at large. The Group also
endeavours to be an environmental-friendly enterprise and to
fulfil its responsibilities for the environment, whilst maintaining
its position as a leading operator in the provision of terminal
and storage facilities and services for liquid petrochemical
products in South China.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group's business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have
invested or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to
influence the outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested
in or affected by or have the potential to be affected by the
impact of the Group’s activities, products, services and
relationships. It allows the Group to understand risks and
opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its
key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the
Group's roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives.
The Group engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually
beneficial relationships and to seek their views on its business
proposals and initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in
the marketplace, workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous
interest in the Group’s business activities. The Group has
identified key stakeholders that are important to our business
and established various channels for communication. The
following table provides an overview of the Group’s key
stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders
@A

Issues of concern

BXEE

Engagement channels

SHRE

Government and Market
regulator

BT B T 5 8

Compliance
Promote regional economic
development and employment

a8
Rl QBB R R %

On-site inspections

Research and discussion through
work conferences, work reports
preparation and submission for
approval

Annual and interim reports,
announcements

E AR K
FRATIEERMRRTH AR
REXTEREAHER
FREPHBRE RE

Shareholders and Investors

Return on the investment
Information transparency
Protection of interests and fair
treatment

Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings
Annual and interim reports,
announcements

BRERREKEE BE [ & BRRBEFRGREMKRRAS
BERE FHRETPHERE 2F
REEZRQTRFS

Employees Employee rights and interests Conference
Working environment Training, seminars, briefing
Health and safety sessions
Career development Cultural and sport activities
opportunities Intranet and emails

(== & B REH M &= e
TERE Bl Eae Hme
REIZZ XERBEED
BRERESE A B 48 % T

Customers Safe and high-quality service Website, brochures, annual
Stable relationship reports
Information protection and Email and customer service
privacy hotline
Business ethics Feedback forms

Regular meeting

S 2 REBERSE Ak N F RER
12 € B 1R BHEEEFRGE2RZ
BRE R ALE 2 88 R/ A%
[ESERE EHE&
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Issues of concern

BxEnr

Stakeholders
A

Engagement channels

BEEE

Suppliers Long-term partnership
Honest cooperation

Fair, open

Information resources sharing
Risk reduction

REIB R

HE A

NSNS

BlRRHE=E

[ ez 4% R

HER

Business meetings, supplier
conferences, phone calls,
interviews

Review and assessment
Tendering process

ez #HtEEeE T
WE -k

il R

BIERF

Peer/Industry associations Experience sharing
Cooperation

Fair competition
Ko =E

B1E

AFBF

Industry conference
Site visit

TEE=
B ZE R

Community Community involvement
Social responsibilities
M

HtEEME

o

Charity and social projects

BERMRIER

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are
important to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues
and key performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the
Report according to recommendations of the ESG Reporting
Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules) and the GRI
standards.
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The Group have evaluated the materiality and importance in
ESG aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international
industry peers.

o The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based
on the important of each ESG area to the Group through
internal discussion of the management and the
recommendation of ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement

o The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG
area identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be
covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

o Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’'s
management ensured all the key and material ESG areas,
which is important to the business development, were
reported and in compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2018, those important
ESG areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Based on 1SO14001, the standard of management system for
environment, the Group has established a set of management
systems regarding environmental protection, including but not
limited to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”, “Waste
Management System” and “Wastewater Management System”.
The Group’s objectives on environmental protection are to
eliminate and reduce the impact of its operation on the
ecological environment and endeavours to save resources and
protect the environment. The Group is in strict compliance with
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during
the reporting period.

A1. EMISSIONS

Air Pollutant Emission

Emission control is essential for mitigating the impact on the
environment and protecting the health of employees. The
Group’s emission complies with “Emission Limits of Air
Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)" (K & 55 Z % ¥ W R B) and
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk Gasoline Terminal

(GB 20950-2007)" (& i B K .75 3 ¥ BE BUIZ %),

The air pollutant emission during the reporting period is as
follows:

A BREER

RIRISO14001 GRIFE R B RIRE) - K
SEERY —ERREERS BREE
TRRIARSREERS]  [BEYNERE
ERIRDEKERRER] - AEEAIRR
BIZEHMR BERE 2 EHERREN
TE O UENHFHERRREFRE - K
SEBEBET(PEARAMBRER
&R) REMARRRIED FOAR - RIS
MY EEHREEENERTEGH -

Al. MY

RS
THBERERIEEIREN T ERRER
BRRFEHEZ - AEENERDFTE
[ KR35 2 %) B 18 IR {8(DB44/27-2001) |
RIEBE XIS R HEHREZE
(GB 20950-2007) ] °

REE MR ARRSRDEERABERMT

Air Pollutants KREEY

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AEL(NO) 4,431.77 3,851.58
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) —A1EHR(S0,) 77.16 74.18
Particular matter (PM) £52 R T (PM) 444.60 431.99

Air pollutants emission increased in 2018 as fuel consumption
in production facilities and services sites increased.
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As most of the products stored are highly volatile, the Group
has implemented “VOCs One Enterprise One Policy
Comprehensive Improvement Program” (VOCs — 1t — x4 &
JA 77 2) to control volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
from source and production processes. Key measures to
mitigate the leakage of the volatile chemicals are implemented
as follows:

o External floating roof tanks' are used to store gasoline,
diesel and other volatile chemical products

o Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapour generated in the
tank is collected and treated with activated carbon.

o To reduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC) emission,
oil-gas condensation recovery devices are installed to
achieve a recycling rate of 98%.

o All the volatile organic compounds (e.g. pentane, acetone)
are stored in specific containers and sealed properly to
avoid leakage.

Apart from measures adopted to reduce VOCs, the Group
lowers the emission of SO, by using low-sulfur diesel (National
V standard) for the boiler.

t External floating roof tanks (¥TB= {77 H) are storage tanks
commonly used to store large quantities of petroleum products.
They eliminate breathing losses and greatly reduce the
evaporative loss of the stored liquid.

2 Nitrogen blanketing (RE % &) is widely used in many industries

to prevent fires, explosion, degradation of products during their
production, storage and transport.
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG"”) Emission3

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon footprint by minimising the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use
of resources”.

The greenhouse gas emission during the reporting period is as
follows:

BERB(BEERE] R

MR A SR RIRE R - AN B D
BHERERAKENEEREEH  ARZ
FERDEHAEHPRERE - PTERM
BRABABRRREFEANIERER]—

R EHRAEREHFBINBRAOT

2017

—E-NF ZB—LF

tonnes of  tonnes of

CO2-e CO2-e

R R

GHG Emission mERBEER EEN EEN

Scope 14 EERE 365.12 414.28

Scope 2° & [5]2° 6,558.75 5,063.52

Total &&t 6,923.87 5,477.80
Intensity tonnes of CO,-e/thousand tonnes of

mE terminal throughput
“REREEW EREEE T 1.73 0.85

Scope 1 GHG emission in 2018 was lower than that in 2017 as
direct emission from burning fossil fuel decreased. With a sense
of supporting the use of clean energy, the Group supports
green environment by transferring its fuel consumption to low-
carbon fossil fuel such as LPG.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated are handled with a comprehensive procedure
to mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a
strict classification system for different types of wastes. Each
type of waste has specific storage location and collection
procedures. There is a precaution implemented for the leakage
of waste to present pollution.

3 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from
Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

4 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or
controlled by the Group.

° Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity and steam
consumed by the Group.
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Hazardous wastes such as hazardous wastewater, waste oil
cleaning rag and organic solvents are handled according to the
latest policies of “National Hazardous Waste Inventory”. These
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for
record. The Group engages qualified recycling companies to
perform waste disposal and treatment so as to minimise the
impact on the nature.

The wastes generated by the Group during the reporting period
are as follows:

Waste Disposal

BEEYWMMAFEK BREERGLAE
HARE)RBERERED L EH) &K
HMBREIE - ZERYMBULFRER
DREBLEE MMELE AKEZRE
BREBRLOBARIAEEMEE K
R ESE 5 ANTE -

RBEREAREELEDOBROT

BEYEE
Hazardous wastes tonnes 174.28 148.93
BEREY A
Hazardous wastes produced intensity tonnes/thousand tonnes of terminal 0.043 0.023
EENBEEEYEE throughput
W, B @ A = TR

Non-hazardous wastes produced tonnes 38.50 32.19
EFENEZED A
Non-hazardous wastes produced tonnes/employee 0.09 0.07

intensity Wi, & 8
EENESTENEE
Non-hazardous wastes recycled tonnes 7.20 6.00
B | EEY A
Non-hazardous wastes recycled tonnes/employee

intensity W, & 8
B Y ey & E EE Y E 2 0.04 0.24

Total amount of waste generated in 2018 was higher than that
in 2017 as port activity and storage, warehousing and
transshipment operation increased. The Group put effort on
waste-free initiatives in reducing waste, reflecting from an
increase in amount of non-hazardous waste recycled.

The Group has launched waste recycling and implemented
different measures to reduce the wastes generated in the
office. For example, used paper and plastic materials are
collected in the office for recycling purpose. Waste electrical
and electronic equipment is separately collected. With these
measures, the Group hopes to ease the pressure on landfill
space and bring benefits to the environment.
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Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied to
all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of
wastewater. Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two
separate systems to prevent pollution to groundwater.

The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology (¥ 2 T K 23R 5 2 [7)
to develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats wastewater
with microorganisms. During this year, around 23,500 cubic
metres of wastewater was discharged and treated. After the
treatment, the water which meets satisfactory quality standard,
is used in fire services and planting. Not only the emission of
wastewater to land and water bodies is reduced, but also the
water can be reused to save the water resource. This system is
simple and the cost of maintenance and operation is low.
Therefore, it is widely admired and accepted by government
departments and peers.

Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of
boilers, pumps and compressors, etc. Appropriate acoustic
insulation is applied to those machines. Regular maintenance is
also conducted as to reduce the noise generated due to
wearing of the components in those machines.

A2. USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from
purchased steam and electricity. According to characteristics of
different stored products, steam is required to maintain the
temperatures of the products to ensure the quality of the
products is satisfactory. In response to the National
Environmental Policy, the Group has ceased the use of boiler
system and switched to purchase public steam to reduce the
fuel consumption and emissions at the same time.

The Group promotes the idea of “green office” to reduce the
electricity consumption as follows:

o The temperature in the office is set at 26 Degree Celsius
in summer.
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o No heating is supplied in winter according to the
characteristic of weather in South China.

o All electronic appliances have to be switched off when
leaving the office.

o After all staff leave the office, security guards double check
the electronic appliances and ensure all of them are
switched off.

The Group also checks the oil usage frequently to minimise the
chances of oil leakage which wastes energy.

During the reporting period, the energy consumptions are as
follows:

e REFMMEBRIANEH  ZXT

SIRMER o

NS

AR AER: -

o HRBPAER

e MMEBEEIBEMMAER REAB
BELER BRAAERICH
o

AEBTEEEREMMBENL BER

ERBENEE  ARRERER -

BB Y - BB FEN RN T -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

kWh in '000s kWh in "000s

Energy Type TETRE T @ T & &

Purchased electricity BEES 6,956.55 5,003.01

Purchased steam BEER 4,720.47 4,269.96

Petrol I 367.64 421.09

Diesel Sem 960.91 1,195.98

LPG LPG 109.14 —

Total energy consumption BEREELE 13,114.71 10,890.04

Energy intensity BER=EE

kWh in '000s/thousand tonnes F f& T E B /& [& & it £ T 18

of terminal throughput 3.27 1.69

The increased in total energy consumption in 2018 was higher
than that in 2017 because provision of terminal, storage,
warehousing and transshipment services for oil and
petrochemical product increased.
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Water

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. In order to monitor the usage of water, meters are
installed in different locations and water consumption is
recorded regularly. There is staff who is responsible for
managing the water usage and checking the water system. If
leakage of water pipe happens, repair will be immediately
carried out to reduce the wastage of water resource.

In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according to
the actual water usage. To encourage water-saving, water
usage of each staff in the staff quarter is recorded and the
staff has to pay water bills by themselves.

The water consumption during the reporting period is as
follow:

7K

KEARBELEENS —EFEZER A
EESRAKE - KRB ETR B & 2
THREEAKE - AEEBEETEME
EEERKEBEKRE - WKEZEE
R RN EITHEE - LURDKEIR
B R B o

THRSAEKEREERBKEHE -
REBEAORAK LB THITES
BETMAK BITABITXMNKE-

K& REACHEFENERAT

Consumption Usage (in m?) 136,847.50 93,393.07
HIEE AE (ZFK)

Intensity m?/thousand tonnes of terminal throughput 34.13 14.53
BE MHKR/SERATE TR

Water consumption increased in 2018 because the Group's
operation activities increased.

Nitrogen

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process
is controlled automatically instead of manually to avoid wastes.
The usage of nitrogen is monitored to ensure there is no
leakage.
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A3. THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group's terminal is near to the waterbody with high
biodiversity and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group's
internal policies, efforts have been made to minimise the
impact of activities on the environment. For example, two sets
of oil spill monitoring and alerting system have been installed in
the water body near the terminal. The system is able to detect
oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is berthing or oil
products are loaded. The situation of the terminal is also
monitored by staff under 24-hour real-time video surveillance
system. If oil spill accidents are detected, the signal from the
alarm system can reach the responsible staff and prompt
remedies can be carried out to reduce the impact on the
environment.

To strength the pollution control, the Group has cooperated
with a company specialised for handling oil spill accidents to
equip adequate facilities (e.g. oil boom) to prevent the spread
of oil leakage in the sea.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and
is committed to improve in these four areas: employment,
health and safety, development and training and labour
standard.

B1. EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide good and safe working environment to its
staff in order to comply with “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. It sets out the Group's standards
for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines, remuneration scale,
holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental leaves and working
hours. All employees are treated equally and their employment,
remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be affected
by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status.

This year, the Group has continued to support “The Second
Trade Union Committee” (5@ T &% E ) and “The Second
Female Employee Committee” (55 —fE Z B T Z B €) to foster
communication between labour and the management, and to
provide a platform for employees to express opinions.

64 ANNUAL REPORT 2018

A3. BRERRRER
AREBMAOBEMITKE  EREEEE
BhABEEREE - REAKEHAI
BER  EBRAOBEXRHEHHRENT
Z-B2P|MmE MOBENKEE LR
MERMERRERRG -EmmER
SHE MM FEERAREELER
HES e BTG 24K ERSEE
BERERBEARR -HELERBAE
S BEREAREBEARTERERET
WHRBGA R BRIEE - REHRBEZF
@,

BIMBSREE  AEEEFEMEER
HEBINRBIAIE - AEETE D RE (D
BWHR)  #es LIREER-

B. HEEM@

BERZEIER
AEBEFEERAEEREBNEE I
BARSEUTHARBE : EF BER
e BERREIIFLY TIZAE

B1. Ef&E

AEEEHERBEIT " EANBERER
BEREF BEREIRHRIIRE
2R ITERE  UFE(PEAREME
BEERE)  HIFAEEEE T
B.EHAES  HRX BARETH
HRYP - EBEISNERE-FIEES
HFBRYE HER FERSAKEST
B ER TR RENMERAR

1=
rE e

RE AEBOKRIF_EISZES
MEZEXBIZES RESHEE
BEEMER REEREEXRERLNY

B o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE -HERERRE

The Group also advocates harmonious and work-life balance
culture among the employees through organising diversified
activities, including annual dinner, annual gathering, sport days
and birthday parties, etc. These activities can help the
employees to relax and enhance communications among them.
During the reporting period, no concluded cases (2017: nil)
regarding employment were brought against the issuer or its
employees.

B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group
is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and the community. The Group has established
“Health, Safety and Environment Policy Statement” in
accordance with the requirement of “Occupational Health and
Safety Management System” (OHSAS 18001). The Group
continues to improve the working conditions and monitor the
effectiveness of safety related controls. The Group complies
with related health and safety laws and regulations such as
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases”, “Production Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, “Provisions on the Supervision
and Administration of Occupational Health at Work Sites”, etc.
In 2018, no concluded cases (2017: nil) regarding health and
safety were brought against the issuer or its employees.

Care to Employees

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal
protective equipment (helmet, goggles, masks, etc.) in the
workplace. Occupation hazards assessment is conducted by third
party regularly to monitor the performance on occupational
safety.

The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
warm and comfortable working and living environment. The
Group has set up self-managed staff quarters and canteens with
a view to providing sound rest space and healthy catering to its
employees. Drinks are also freely provided to all employees in
hot season to prevent them from having heat stroke.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employees in workplace is crucial.
precautions are implemented as follows:

Key safety

o Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and emergency
cut-off valve are installed in each berth.
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o Parameters of all flammable and explosive substances are
carefully and closely monitored (e.g. temperature,
pressure, flow volume) during transfer. All parameters
information is transferred to PLC (Programmable Logic
Controllers) in the terminal control center for monitoring
the frontline operation.

o Worker, who enters the tank, must wear protective clothes
and make sure that the toxic gas concentration does not
exceed the acceptable level.

o Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing
apparatus are provided.

B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group continues to provide comprehensive and suitable
trainings to employees to promote a learning culture based on
the Group’s “Training Management Procedure” and other
related internal policies. The Group analyses the employees’
training and operation needs to prepare training and budget
plan yearly. The Group provides diversified on-the-job trainings
to employees, particularly safety trainings, with the aim to
improve the quality of the employees’ safety and to establish a
corporate safety culture.

Generally, there are both internal and external trainings for
employees. Every new employee needs to receive a three-
month training including general knowledge and skills about
storage tanks. Assessment is conducted after the training. Only
the new employees who pass the assessment can start their
work in their position. Continuous assessment is conducted to
keep track on the performance of the current employees. The
Group also offers on-the-job training, which based on the
operation needs and annual training plan. It aims to enhance
the performance and skill of employees. External training mainly
includes certification training for specialists (e.g. safety
management personnel, engineers, accountants, etc.). The
Group invites related government departments and institutions
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.

With continuous trainings and assessments, the safety
knowledge of the employees can be strengthened and the
safety awareness can be enhanced. This can decrease the
occurrence of work-related accidents.
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B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, especially
gender equality and is strongly against employment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group strictly complies with
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and other
relevant laws and regulations. Recruitment guideline clearly
states that person under 16 is not allowed to work in the
Group and zero tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

During the year, the Group was not subject to any punishment
by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit related
to child labour or forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group depends on suppliers to provide production
materials and components for different storage facilities. The
choice of suppliers is based on a list of criteria, including
compliance, price, quality, stability of supply and after-sales
services in accordance with the Group’s internal policy
“Material Procurement Management Regulations”. The Group
maintains a long-term relationship with suppliers based on the
result from supplier assessment. During the vyear, the
assessment result is satisfactory and there are no significant
risks related to supply chain in environmental and social
aspects.

B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading midstream player in providing storage service for
chemical products in South China, maintaining the safety and
quality of customers’ products in the warehouse is the utmost
concern of the Group. In order to continuously improve the
quality of service provided by the Group, we have set up an
internal policy — “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures in accordance with
the requirement of quality management system (ISO9001).
During the year, the Group was not subject to any disputes
relating to the storage service or punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to
product responsibility.

Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to
provide Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored.
Besides, all storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United
Nation Number) and other relevant numbers for identification.
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When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample
testing on the goods, verify the certification or testing report
provided by the suppliers and check if the name, specification
and technical information of the sample meet the national/
international standards. Only goods that pass the testing and
meet the related requirements can be stored in the Group’s
warehouse.

Department of commerce of the Group is responsible for
dealing the with complaints from customers. Prompt response
will be taken and the problem will be identified to prevent
similar complaints from happening. During the vyear, three
complaints (2017: two complaints) related to the efficiency of
goods unloading were received by the Group. The Group
responded to the cases immediately and explained to the
clients. The situation has improved after the adjustment of the
working schedule of employees and the increase in the
consumer service training.

Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and
privacy is the key principle for operation. We comply with
relevant laws and regulations. According to Group’s Staff
Handbook, employees are required to sign an agreement to
protect the privacy of clients and any other sensitive business
information. Employees who violate the agreement will receive
punishment and legal action will be taken. During the year, no
severe violation was found that posed a significant impact on
the Group.

B7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery
in any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Il
— Crimes of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market
Economy Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Chapter VIl — Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
in HKSAR” and other relevant laws and regulations relating to
anti-corruption.

The Group’s has adopted “Compliance Policies” and stated that
the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will not
export, re-export, or otherwise divert customer’s products and
other items in violation of any Trade Control Laws. All the
employees and external drivers who can get access to the
customers’ products are monitored. For example, the weight of
truck is checked when it enters and leaves the premises to
monitor any abnormal loading.
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The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. The Group has
zero tolerance to any forms and degrees of bribery or
corruption behaviours in relation to the Group’s business
activities. During the year, no concluded cases (2017: nil)
regarding corrupt practices were brought against the issuer or
its employees.

COMMUNITY

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contributing to the society and
fostering positive relationship with the communities in which
the Group operates. The Group has related policies and
measures to understand the needs of the community, such as
villagers, employees and non-governmental organisations.
Contribution to the community and maintaining harmonious
relationship with the stakeholders in the region of operation are
crucial for the sustainable development.

o Donation of RMB20,000 to support alleviation of poverty.

"HEMRERHEBEFEEENMN" was awarded to the

Group.
. “hETZPEETERERKESR" was awarded to the
Group.

. Participated in the “Safety Knowledge Contest” (% & %1
# % ) organised by the Lisha Island Chemical Industrial
Park ((2 &{t TEE) and got 1st runner-up in June
2018. This can raise the awareness of occupational health
and safety among employees and help the Group to win
the honour.

b S

. Participated in the “FEZmH 5 ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ< e EYEHE
R EEFFE " organised by the %++_/%ﬁnﬁﬁ% and
got 2nd, 6th, and 10th runner-up on 9 September 2018.
This can raise the awareness of safety in production and
management level.

. Participated in the "ERAERBEHTE KK EREYE
# B R AL E " organised by the Transport Department of
Guangdong Province (BHR A X BEH EE) and got two
first prize and one third prize. This can raise the
awareness of safety in production and management level.

. Participated in the "> H BRI E2018F &1 % M £ 75
Kag Kb R and defended the champion successfully.
This can raise the awareness of fire safety among
employees.

. Participated in the "R 3220184 [ % B | %2 2 A & A4
#&E” and got 1st runner-up in November. This can
improve working atmosphere.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYZEMEE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hans Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 78 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b)
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the
Group has been financed by a high level of borrowings and
amounts due to related parties. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group's total bank loans and other borrowings and amounts
due to related parties totalled $1,085,769,000, of which
$295,997,000 are due within one year and the Group is
committed to incur finance cost of $41,411,000 for these
borrowings within one year. The Group is in the process of
disposing of one of its subsidiaries to a third party in order to
improve the Group’'s liquidity and reduce its financing costs.
However, there is no guarantee that all conditions prior to the
closing of the transaction can be satisfactorily fulfilled within
the time Ilimit. As stated in note 1(b), these events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 1(b),
indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
Group’s ability to generate sufficient cash flows from future
operations and/or other sources to meet its liquidity
commitments. Further details are set out in note 1(b). The
consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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Assessing potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and interests in land
held for own use under operating leases

FEME - -BEERRE UARRBELEHAERE
BALTHERNEERE

Refer to accounting policy (h) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

BRHEEN BRI B BN RHTZ10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REFE=E

The Group’'s principal activities are the provision
of terminal, storage, warehousing and
transshipment services for oil and petrochemical
products in the Guangdong province of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

At 31 December 2018, the Group's property,
plant and equipment and interests in land held for
own use under operating leases accounted for
40% of the total assets of the Group. These
assets principally comprised dock and storage
facilities which had a carrying value HK$572
million as at 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group recorded a loss from operations of HK$50
million. In particular, one of the cash-generating
units (“CGU") with property, plant and
equipment and interests in land held for own use
under operating leases carried at a value of
HK$776 million as at 31 December 2018,
recorded a loss before taxation of HK$53.4
million.
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Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment and interests in
land held for own use under operating leases
included the following:

3 evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of property, plant and
equipment, interests in land held for own use
under operating leases and other assets
allocated to each CGU;

3 assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which
included evaluating the impairment indicators
identified by management and assessing the
impairment assessment methodology with
reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

o obtaining and inspecting the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and
interests in land held for own use under
operating leases were based;

BMEF MR ERRRE URREEEHE
515 6 B L3 0 E LB B 4T R BRI T
B

e HEEEEHBRSELBUMNEZMN UAEE
ERBERCELEUYE BERREM
RELLHESFER TSNS E

e HAETEREEBHREMEN BE2
RIBITE A ER K HEIEE R AR
B R EFEBORENE T RETHE:

s ERUREEEERHUN BEZENEY
X BENERE ARREBEKEHEERIEAR
TR ER AL BENERBEFER



Independent Auditor’s Report
R R ey

Assessing potential impairment of property, ¥ BMERRE URBEKEHEEE
plant and equipment and interests in land B At Hh#ERSHEERE

held for own use under operating leases

Refer to accounting policy (h) and note 10 to the & 245 & M IRZ B S 5H K& (h) R K210
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRMNBSFNNEEZER

BRETER

In addition, the current economic environment in
the PRC and the volatility of oil prices have
created uncertainty in relation to the demand for
the Group’s facilities. Consequently, management
considered that potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and interests in land held for
own use under operating leases existed for this
loss making CGU as at 31 December 2018.

Management performed impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and interests in
land held for own use under operating leases
using the value in use model and compared the
aggregate carrying values of each separately
identifiable CGU to which the property, plant and
equipment and interests in land held for own use
under operating leases had been allocated with
the net present value of the respective future cash
flow (“discounted cash flow analyses”) to
determine the amount of impairment which
should be recognised for the year, if any.

li|:9|\ - P BB AT A BRI MR (BB BB A
BREFEROTEEE - At - EBEBERR/R
“—)\¢+ A=1+—H ZEBERELRSE

EEUARTFEDR BEMRBARRERE

HERSEFERZ T HERME -

EEEEHYE BELRRE UERREBELEMR
ERFER TR ETRENGR  KAEA
BERLY BELEYE BELRRE  ARR
BREHERFERZ LIRS MB NS E A3
ARG ELBNMEREERBRERKRERE
(REREFRIN) REOREFEETHL
NEEREFARIBORERRNESE(WA) -

challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow analyses by comparing the
significant inputs, which included future
revenue and future operating costs with the
historical performance, committed contracts on
hand, the financial budgets of the Group
which had been approved by the directors and
externally derived data, which included
projected growth rates, projected inflation
rates and industry analyses published by
external research institutes;

assessing the discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow analyses by
benchmarking against those of other similar
companies in the same industry;

BALREANGARE  BERKKARK
KEEXRAEBERE BRBEAHER EEF
Bt EXEYBEE URINBEH
(BREINBHAERBRMOBEFERE  HGt
LHE?&”% AT HEEEBENRASR

ERDITARAMNRRRERREGFETRER

MRTERAEMEUERAEE  FERE
MEFRIMARAZIFTRE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
R R

Assessing potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment and interests in land
held for own use under operating leases

AEME-BERRE URREKEHERE
BALTHERNEERE

Refer to accounting policy (h) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

2
af[

& 8 5 2 0 & 5t R (h) R BT 10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETONMEEZSEE

BREITEH

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and interests in
land held for own use under operating leases as a
key audit matter because of the significant
management judgement required in making
assumptions and estimations, which can be
inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

EEE’\T’Eﬁ{E““&ﬁquﬁﬁ%EKEIEJ'#IJ@ EA
FRRFEMBFTAEEFAERS THEE L AJ LB
FEEERR AU RMANFGEYE  BERE
B ARREBELLEHESFAR L EENE
BRI AR ESFE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

THEREON

evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations by
comparing the forecasts at the end of the
previous financial year for revenue and
operating costs with the actual outcomes in
the current year and investigating reasons for
any significant differences between the
forecast and actual results;

performing sensitivity analyses for both the
discount rates and future revenue and
considering the resulting impact on the
impairment assessments and whether there
were any indicators of management bias in
the selection of assumptions.

BB EEYBEERERA REERARE
BFREAFERKEGERETHL HERE
BEBEMMERBEFTENEREETH
B UYREEXRBARERERZEHEMNE
REFENRA

BRFRERRKBAETHEREDIN X E
BEHBREFHELENRZE  UREERR
EEFEEMNEERENDR -

REMBBRRAGHAES UINNE
=

The directors are responsible for the other information. The ZEEZZUHMEZEEE - HiEE B
other information comprises all the information included in the FIERN FHRABNEIELE - BT BIELR
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements & Bf %3 R & T FIA X AN R & o

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not ﬁﬁﬁ,m/\ﬁﬁ‘%#&ﬁﬁﬁ’l BRI TREHR
cover the other information and we do not express any form of {5 & - T {F9 5 7 % itk 28 R E A 2 X A9

assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

BERMERAVBRRNES - M
WMETRMEBEMES  ELUBES
ZERHEMEEEEEEAMBHRRIRK
MESRTEETHTHONBAFEEX
EEREUFFEERERRANBNR

ERBMERTHIE mREMAR
HEMEEFEERBRRL AT
EHRERFEE-EE E RMREBE
fa] 3 45

ESNGAMBERARENER

EXAREARBEESFAMISEMD
(BRMBHREER) REFEB(RREH)
MEBEERBEEEMTENGEEMB
BER UHERSBESEEPBRRN
BEITFEARNGFRERMEBNE
RERRAFAFTOATZFEE -

EReBmeM BRI EFRANG
BERERBELENREN XHEERB
MTEBRERELCLEARNER UK
ERFECERETER RIEEFH
B BEEEBRAFLELE HHE
HBERNERTR -

ERZEEWNEZTRITEE BX
MRS BENET-

i

BRBAHRBETREMBRRABENEL

BANBRE EHSEAMBHRRERR
BN FEHRRFRERMEFNERXN
HRRANGEERE YHABRER
PEROEBERS - HREESERE
PRS- BRUL 290 ARl R E AR A
B BMBM AR ARENAT  HEMR
Hi AL BEHAERE

BEREEFSKFHRE  BITEERE
REKE AR ERDETOE  EX
—EAERRATFAERAERR - HBR
BRI AT DA R ARFF Sk 85 AR Bl 2 - IR &
BHEMEBIERERARETZERS
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B 3% R R

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

76

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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B % RS

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Shiu Chung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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- HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEBEER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA 7% 7T 51| /)

2017
—E—tF
(Restated)
(&&E7))
$'000
Tt
Continuing operations: BEREER:
Revenue KA 3 141,556 110,712
Direct costs and operating expenses H £ A & &< & (107,964) (100,402)
33,592 10,310
Other income H b Y 2= 4 7,602 4,328
Administrative expenses THER (52,724) (41,527)
Impairment losses ek 1B &5 48 5(c) (38,353) —
Loss from operations BREBR (49,883) (26,889)
Finance costs B 75 BX AR 5(a) (39,633) (41,409)
Loss before taxation B i Al B 18 5 (89,516) (68,298)
Income tax Fris & 6(a) (9,099) —
Loss for the year from BEREER
continuing operations FRNEER (98,615) (68,298)
Discontinued operations: bR K
Profit for the year from IRERRE TS
discontinued operations F N5 A 27 35,164 70,892
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE), BF (63,451) 2,594
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEeBEEZX

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—F -AF+_A=+—-RLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7051 7R)

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
— continuing operations

— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit for the year

Basic and diluted (losses)/
earnings per share

— continuing operations

— discontinued operations

FE 44
ARBBER

— REREED
— RIEBERH

FEER A
— REREER
— RIERERTH

Fr(BRE)EF

BREFR#E(ER)
/B
— REREER

— RIEBEXR

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 86 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

2017
—ET—+tF
(Restated)

(rE51)
$'000
T

(94,757) (64,866)
32,351 65,221
. (62,406) 355
(3,858) (3,432)
2,813 5,671
(o045 2,239
(63,451) 2,594

(2.54 centsfl)
0.87 centsll

(1.74 centsfll)
1.75 centsill

(1.67 centsfill)

0.01 centsfll

M AEBEER-_ZT-N\F—A—BNZ
ERBERBERE ERNEIHKREL
MM EERIFN - RIFATEEH B
B WREMYARET - R &

1(c)

BN FECAEEI9AE ZMEREAKLE

MBHmERz—#D -
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~ HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEZEBRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE_ZT—\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA 7% 7T 51| /)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year:

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated
income statement:

Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
— continuing operations

— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative

Fr(ER)ER
FRAEMREHKE
HERAEEEHN D EELR
EHREERMNIAR

B N B B S R
= ERE

— BEREXER
— RUEREXTR

F A2 A

&4
NN
— BEREER

— RIEBEX

FEIE AR =
— BEREER
— RUEREXETR

FARMEKSARE

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 86 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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2017

—E—+F

(Note)

(P 5E)

(Restated)

(L E75)

$'000

Tt

(63,451) 2,594

(25,467) (27,243)

14,196 39,546

(74,722) 14,897

(118,247) (90,131)

45,411 101,603
(72836 11,472

(5,835) (5,410)

3,949 8,835
(888 . 3,425

(74,722) 14,897

i AEBMER_ZE-N\F-—A—BUF
EREBUBEREEEISEREL
B 15 3 RIS - RIFATERZFAB
EHE HREMLARED - &M &

1(c) °

N FE86H £1998 2 i s A B It &

MBmERz—#D -



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER

at 31 December 2018 R=F—N\E+=-HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA# 7T %11 /R )

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mk WEREE 10 606,718 925,065
Interests in land held for own use 1RIEREHEFIEEH
under operating leases Z T RERS 10(b) 177,803 230,673
Prepayments TE 1S RIE 704 9,941
Intangible assets EEE (& 1,565 1,743
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 18(b) — 2,916
I 786,790 1,170,338
Current assets RBEE
Interests in land held for own use 1RIBEKELHEFIET A
under operating leases 7 RE RS 10(b) 4,741 6,743
Consumable parts VB #E mn 12 8,284 11,083
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE bR R IE 14 24,907 85,908
Cash and cash equivalents HeKIBeEEEE 15(a) 881,071 41,161
919,003 144,895
Assets classified as held for sale PBEEBELREZEE 27 248,967 —
~1ie7970 144,895
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b B 1 5RIE R ET IR
& A 16
— Consideration received from — HE—FWBAF
disposal of a subsidiary Ffr X B 890,206 —
— Other creditors and accruals — EtEMERR K
FHRE M 51,100 54,777
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 17 90,162 64,601
Current taxation BN HA 7 18 18(a) 9,096 —
Amounts due to related parties JE 5 B8 58 75 SR IB 19 205,835 —
1,246,399 119,378
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) BE
RE (78,429 . 25,517
Total assets less current HEERRBARE
liabilities 708,361 1,195,855
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
BEBEBER

at 31 December 2018 R=F—\F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T 51 7R)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans and other borrowings
Amounts due to related parties

Deferred tax liabilities

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total deficit attributable to

equity shareholders of the

Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL (DEFICIT)/EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 March 2019.

Yang Dong

I ES
Director

EF

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1

EREBAE

RITEXRREMEE 17
FETRAEE 5 2 5RIE 19
EEREEE 18(b)

(BfE) " EEFE

BARREE
& 7R 22(b)
&

A T R 3R B G 488 Al

FERERS

(B A s

789,772 922,363

— 265,094

2,971 —

. 792,743 1,187,457
(84,382) 8,398
373,264 373,264
(450,056) (384,020)
(76,792) (10,756)
(7.590) 19,154
(84,382) 8,398

e R AR RT3 -

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 86 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

82 ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B E

Zhang Lei
Director

EF

MBmERz—#D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERBBEX

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE=_T—\F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A % 7T 51 7R )

Balance at 1 January 2017

Changes in equity for 2017:
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2017
and 1 January 2018

Changes in equity for 2018:

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

in respect of prior years
Equity setfled share-based transaction

Balance at 31 December 2018

RZ8-tE-A-A25H

CE-LERERE:
EmgH
Et2ENE

EANEER

RoB-tEt2A=t-AR
“E-N\5-F-Aekh

“E-\ERHEE:

ERER

Ef2E%E

FENEER

HEEEREAER
EEHRE

HEBREZENZS

HoE-NE
tZB=t-Ré8

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

A i3
Share-
hased
Translation Statutory  compensation Non-controlling
Share capital  Share premium  Special reserve Tesene Tesere reserie Accumulated losses Total [IEE
FhRE EYER  iERE ROEMEE - a4 &
§1000 §/000 §1000 §/000
i Tr i Tr
(Note 21)
24
373264 naTm (251428 8819 31947 - (975,307) (228 15729 (6499)
= = = = = = 3% 3% 2139 5%
- - - 1,17 - - - 1,17 1,186 12308
- - - 1,17 - - 355 1147 3425 14897
373,264 man o (5148) 99,936 31,947 - (974,952) (10,756) 19,154 839
- - - - - - (62,406) (62406) (1,045) (63451)
- - - (10430) - - - (10,430) (841) (1.2m)
- - - (10430) - - (62,406) (12.836) (1,886) (187120)
- - - - - - - - (24,858) (24,858)
- - - - - 6,800 - 6,800 - 6,800
373,204 n4am (251429 89,506 31,947 6,800 (1,037,358) (76,192) (7.590) (84382)
MR- N\F-A—HAEHEER

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 86 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

&R &8 B 15 RS RSB 55% BB
BI TR & R E5 - IRIBATEZE A
BIE ATEINLREN - 2R

FE1(0) °

N EBE E1998 2 M i B L F

MBHmERz—#D -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE_ZT—\F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA 7% 7T 51| /)

2017
—E—tF
(Note)
(M%)
$'000
T
Operating activities EETH
Cash generated from operations KEXBEBRS 15(b) 155,610 133,330
Net cash generated from EESEE
operating activities FEEERHE 155,610 133,330
Investing activities REFD
Consideration received from HE—HRBARZ
disposal of a subsidiary 2R E 16 890,206 —
Payment for the purchase of BAME  BE KR
property, plant and equipment Rigi= g (13,850) (6,496)
Proceeds received from the disposal HE¥% - WE K&
of property, plant and equipment &2 2 W15 ZE 3,165 —
Prepayments for acquisition of BAME  BE KR
property, plant and equipment B 2 A KB — (1,885)
Interest received B F A 1,453 249

Net cash generated from/(used ®EZEHFRE,

in) investing activities (FFA)BREFHE 880,974 (8,132)
Financing activities RMEEE
Interest paid B F & 15(c) (45,940) (47,526)
Advances from a related party A B 5 22 S 5108 15(c) 30,465 19,132
Repayment to a related party BE R 5 A 15(c) (88,927) (19,606)
Repayment of bank loans EBEETER 15(c) (61,656) (59,973)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B IEERE R

interests % & (24,858) —
Net cash used in financing & EE

activities FFRAREER (190,916) (107,973)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REBEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—F -AF+_A=+—-RLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7051 7R)

2017
—T—+tF
(Note)

(PH &)
$'000
T

Net increase in cash and cash HeREELEHEER

equivalents 0 E 5 845,668 17,225
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—B2ZHE&E
at 1 January Re%EER 41,161 22,235
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEE =
changes BEZY (5,758) 1,701
Cash and cash equivalents INTEEEr=EZ
at 31 December ReRBREEEEB 15@) 881,071 41,161
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 Mg AEBEER-_ZT—N\F—A—HWF
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative JEFRE B | E LR E155% RES
information is not restated. See note 1(c). WIS 2RI EO5% - IRIBPTIEIEN A

A L RER W RES o FH A
1(c) °

The notes on pages 86 to 199 form part of these financial BN E86E £1998 2 i 5 7 A A It &5
statements. MBmKkz —89 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JA % T 51| 7R »

1

86

SAEREFRN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell (see note 1(u)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately $63.5
million during the year ended 31 December 2018,
and as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately $78.4
million and the Group's total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by approximately $84.4 million.

As part of its going concern assessment, the Group
has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast.
The Group has been financed by a high level of
borrowings and amounts due to related parties. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total bank loans
and other borrowings and amounts due to related
parties totaling $1,085,769,000, of which
$295,997,000 are due within one year and the
Group is committed to incur finance cost of
$41,411,000 for these borrowings within one year.

To improve the Group’s liquidity, as disclosed in
note 27, on 22 August 2018, the Company and a
third party signed a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (“the Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in
which 100% equity interest of Guangdong (Panyu)
Petrochemical Storage & Transportation Ltd. (“GD
(Panyu)”), with 92% held by the Group, 7% held
by Good Ocean Enterprises Limited and 1% held by
Guangdong Lian Ying Petro Chemicals Company
Limited), together (“the Sellers”), was conditionally
agreed to be sold to a third party (“the Purchaser”)
namely Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited
("the Transaction”) at a total consideration of
RMB1.56 billion (equivalent to $1.78 billion).
Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
total consideration is to be settled by installments.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The completion of the Transaction is subject to
satisfaction of the conditions precedent and closing
conditions within the time limit as stated in the Sale
and Purchase Agreement. As at 31 December 2018,
only some of the conditions have been fulfilled and
the Group has received part of the consideration of
RMBO0.78 billion (see note 16). If all of these
conditions are fully fulfilled and upon satisfaction
(or waiver) of the closing conditions within the time
limit as specified in the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, the Group will receive the remaining
consideration of RMBO0.78 billion (equivalent to
$0.89 billion).

After the completion of the Transaction, the Group
intends to use the proceeds to repay certain
outstanding bank borrowings and expand the
operations of the business remaining in the Group.

While the Purchaser and the Sellers continue to
work together to fulfil the conditions, there is no
guarantee that all the conditions precedent and the
closing conditions will be satisfied as scheduled. In
particular, some conditions require approval of
relevant authorities and cooperation of other
parties. In addition, the Purchaser has the right to
terminate the Transaction under certain
circumstances as specified in the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. The cash flow consequences of the
Transaction being terminated would be as follows:

(i) If the Transaction is terminated by the
Purchaser, the Group would be entitled to
default payment of $356,082,000. However,
the Group may have to first return the
consideration received of $890,206,000 in full
to the Purchaser and therefore, the timing of
receiving the compensation in the event of
default is uncertain.

(i) If the Transaction is terminated because of
reasons other than termination by the
Purchaser, the Group will need to return the
consideration received of $890,206,000 and
may be liable to an additional default payment
of $356,082,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7T 51 7R

SHEHE KRN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

In addition, the Group expects to incur non-
operating cash outflows of $337,408,000 within one
year, being (i) repayment of the amounts due to
related parties of $205,835,000; (ii) repayment of
bank loans of $30,815,000 in June 2019 and
$59,347,000 in December 2019; and (iii) payment of
interest of $41,411,000.

The Group will be unable to return the
consideration received and repay these amounts in
full when they fall due unless it is able to generate
sufficient net cash inflows from its operations and/
or other sources, since the Group only had cash and
cash equivalents of $881,071,000 as at 31
December 2018.

These facts and circumstances indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, it may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

Assuming the completion of the Transaction and
based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow
forecast mentioned above, the directors are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 on a going concern basis. If the
transaction is terminated and the Group is not able
to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in these financial statements.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group’s financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(iii)  HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period, except for the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation which have been adopted at
the same time as HKFRS 9.

(c)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Ffinancial
instruments. recognition and measurement. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-
financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively
to items that existed at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirements.

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 9
on the Group’s accumulated losses and
reserves at 1 January 2018.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and
the transition approach are set out below:

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under HKFRS 9,
derivatives embedded in contracts where
the host is a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are not separated from
the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument
as a whole is assessed for classification.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXSFBEGE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (0 EBFBXEE(H)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including (i) (BEAUBRSERD)D
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Fow 2T HE (B
features with negative compensation (BB K®REZEL)

(continued) FORERTAR EFR
[6] 7% 15 7Y 78 17 5 45 #)

(%)
Classification of financial assets and a. S=MEEKER
financial liabilities (continued) BENDEE)
The measurement categories for all 1B BCE B B

financial assets and financial liabilities
remain the same in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

The carrying amounts for all financial
assets and financial liabilities at 1
January 2018 have not been impacted
by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset or financial
liability at FVPL at 1 January 2018.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the “expected
credit loss” (ECL) model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

Credit losses (continued)

The Group applies the new ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other
receivables) and lease receivables.

For further details on the Group's
accounting policy for accounting for
credit losses, see note 1(h)(i).

The Group has concluded that there
would be no material impact for the
initial application of the new impairment
requirements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

()

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(continued)

€ Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have
been applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

— Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 are recognised in
accumulated losses and reserves as
at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for
2017 continues to be reported
under HKAS 39 and thus may not
be comparable with the current
period.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

(continued)

C. Transition (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15,
customers

HKFRS
framework

costs from contracts with customers.

15 establishes

The determination of the business
model within which a financial
asset is held has been made on the
9aIsls @i dilhe facis amne
circumstances that existed at 1
January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group).

If, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition
would have involved undue cost or
effort, a lifetime ECL has been
recognised for that financial
instrument.

Revenue from contracts with

a comprehensive
for recognising revenue and some
HKFRS

15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered
revenue arising from sale of goods and

rendering

of services, and HKAS 11,

Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces

customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of
January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 11
and 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group
has applied the new requirements only to
contracts that were not completed before 1

equity at 1

January 2018 (if any).

There is no impact of transition to HKFRS 15
on accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with
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1

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(ii) HKFRS 15,

Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are
set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from rental

income was

recognised over the

accounting periods covered by the lease

term

and port income is recognised

upon performance of the services.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the
contract. This may be at a single point in
time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service
is regarded as being transferred over

time:
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When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity
performs;

When the entity’'s performance
creates or enhances an asset (for
example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

dr

Timing of revenue recognition

(continued)

C. When the entity’s performance
does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these 3
situations, then under HKFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of
that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when
the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact on when the
Group recognises revenue from rental
income and port income (see note 1(r)(i)
and (ii)) and this change in accounting
policy has no material impact on
opening balances as at 1 January 2018.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

b.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust
the transaction price for the time value
of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from
customers are received significantly in
advance of revenue recognition or
significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied such
a policy when payments were
significantly deferred, which was not
common in the Group’s arrangements
with its customers. The Group did not
apply such a policy when payments were
received in advance.

It is not common for the Group to
receive payments significantly in advance
of revenue recognition in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact when the
Group recognises financing component
from rental income and port income and
this change in accounting policy had no
material impact on opening balances as
at 1 January 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

1 EXSHBEGE)
() BEBX2®H(E)
(i) (FEMBHEEER)
B15%  KEFEFEHN

KA (&)
b. EAXBREXD
(BEY B REE

A) #1558 & K
ERBRANES
EXBMERDE
MEBEREE
HERXHER
mAERBEF
PANE/S PN )
7 WA HE 52 AT I
BB BRI

It A - AN &R E
RN RBEKRE
T EHEM UK
B A
BMEEEPZE
MEZHETER-
REE R AU
TR T2 5t
B e

EASREERER
FROZHEF -
N LIRSS PN
B U A R AR
RALTER -

R 0CE B 81

& & Al E15
BTG N A EE
RS WA R
7 Ol A\ B8
BHHHELES
AHE AR
SHBERDT
BH-F—N4F
—B—Bz#8
BHREABAY
@,



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Presentation of contract assets and
liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. If
the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the
promised services in the contract, then
the entitlement to consideration is
classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a
contract liability, is recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or s
contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already
due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. For a single contract
with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

These changes in presentation have no
impact on the Group’s assets and
liabilities as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018 as a result of the
adoption of HKFRS 15.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(iii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on
determining “the date of the transaction” for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of
the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or
liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date of the
transaction for each payment or receipt should
be determined in this way. The adoption of
HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and financial
results of the Group.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7T 51 7R

SHEHE KRN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company. Non controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet
in accordance with notes 1(m) or (p) depending on
the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(h)).

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Buildings 30 years

— Dock and storage 5-30 years
facilities

— Office equipment 5-10 years

— Motor vehicles 5-10 years

— Leasehold improvements Over the term of
the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents oil and gas
station under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well
as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the
extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest charges, during the
periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to
property, plant and equipment when the asset
is ready for its intended use. No depreciation
is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 1(h)). Amortisation of club
memberships is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
17 to 24 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases,
except that land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other
receivables) and lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value
are not subject to the ECL assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate
used in the measurement of the
lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and

1 EXEFHBEEGE)
(hy FEBEREEREE)
() EWMIAREBWESH

lease receivables (continued) EEEERE)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 @y B = = \EE—
(continued) HAH—BREBH
R (&)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) STEBRHEEERE
(&)
In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into R E2EBHEE
account reasonable and supportable BER A&
information that is available without SEREESTN
undue cost or effort. This includes B ZKAR RE
information about past events, current D TR EER
conditions and forecasts of future AEAEER-
economic conditions. ILIE B 1R B
TEH-REMR
U B2 AR R A B AR
LR ORI HY & R o
ECLs are measured on either of the EHEEEBES
following bases: AT EER
=
— 12-month ECLs: these are losses — 128 A &
that are expected to result from HEEE
possible default events within the B EEE
12 months after the balance sheet H&1218 A
date; and A A] BE 3% A
EopEROE AL
i & B a8
HiEE : &
— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that — 2 H®E
are expected to result from all HEEE
possible default events over the 1B EEH
expected lives of the items to B
which the ECL model applies. =3 E A
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A7 7T 51 7R + 5 74 &k B & B 50

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXEFHEBERAE)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued) (hy CEBEEREEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and (i) EMIAREWRESH

lease receivables (continued) EEEBBR(E)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 OV Bt AVEE —
(continued) AH—BREBRN

B (&)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) STEEHBEEEE

(&)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and B RWEIEZ
lease receivables are always measured at EEEE R
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs ZRREHME
on these financial assets are estimated HEEBENS

using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the balance
sheet date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the balance sheet date with
that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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1

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA 7L5I 7R + 5 4 # B3 & K Hh)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis
or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each balance
sheet date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A7 7T 51 7R + 5 74 &k B & B 50
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(r)(iv) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each balance sheet date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset and lease receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A7 7T 51 7R + 5 74 &k B & B 50

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXSFHBERGE)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued) (hy CEBEEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and (i) EMIAREWRESH
lease receivables (continued) EEEE(E)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B) RZZE—NE—
A—BA#EA®
56
Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred I = R
loss” model was used to measure H—HBal - [BEE
impairment losses on current and non- B EIRE R
current receivables. Under the “incurred R ET = B HEA & 3E
loss” model, an impairment loss was B EA & Uk =X TE /Y
recognised only when there was BEEE - IRIB
objective evidence of impairment. [EEEABREIR
Objective evidence of impairment XN EEERE
included: BB B F IR R
RBREEE &
BURERERE
—  significant financial difficulties of — BB AE
the debtor; B E KNP
T E 2
— a breach of contract, such as a — EX Ew
default or delinquency in interest R k&
or principal payments; Y& 0 2 (8
& A B K
PN
— it becoming probable that the — BB AT
debtor will enter bankruptcy or A=
other financial reorganisation; and W E sk
11 H fth Bf
BEH: &
— significant changes in the —  BETse
technological, market, economic or KB SOE R
legal environment that have an R E
adverse effect on the debtor. L ATES)
B AERK
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based
on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss
was reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A7 7T 51 7R + 5 74 &k B & B 50
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)
()

(i)

Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or
other financial assets carried at
amortised cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated impairment
losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying amount of
those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets

may be

impaired or an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

If any such

property, plant and equipment;

interests in land held for own use under
operating leases;

intangible assets;

non-current prepayments; and

investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s balance sheet.
indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using the pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JA 7% T 51| /R »
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

()

()]

Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)
—  Reversal of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(h)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see
note 1(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 1(r)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised (see note 1(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R = MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 1(h)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(1)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination) and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Other payables

Other payables (including amounts due to related
parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

(ii) Port income
Port income is recognised upon performance
of the services.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Dividends

— Dividend income from wunlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

—  Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(h)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
balance sheet initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB”) respectively. The Group
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use are complete.

Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued

operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its
present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a
group in a single transaction, and liabilities
directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

()

(ii)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These
assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.
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SHEZEHERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations (continued)
Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal of the assets,
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.

(v) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

1 EXEFHBEEGE)
(v) BBEAX(HE)
(OESE=NN IR SO SE

(b)

Bt ERERNEEFA

[

(i) ZEBEBREREH
BR— %82
ERAAI& &
NI SN

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

—E-N\EER

K [F) & MY /& 1* =)
HULEBEE) -

i
(a3

I 2k
I ]

>
e
m &} ol

Kolg
\
/

DNl g o

N
WS

oy m oy | o) e S
I S

o%
3 5% 7>
o> Jf
I o1 > Ik —

P L3 DS D NS |
g

° ||| \mf

ME R

1)
[,

\r
I
am
kol

| o> o

\
Comg
Jul

g g =
o 1 W
Il

\r
I

i
B

/
]
ko

O M Ot
il{lil:
5| 30 =
o o

=
“EN

hWEREAAEEH
EANEEE
HERIIES
7| 25 3% 37 B0 BE B
%Bi %lj EI-I— EJ

It & 88 X (a) P &
*ﬂiﬁ

R (@) Fr =8 Bl A
THHEREE
REENIBZ
ER(LZERE
WEBAR)ER
EEEKE -

133



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A7 7T 51 7R + 5 74 &k B & B 50

1

134

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Going concern

As disclosed in note 1(b), the directors have
prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis as they are of the opinion that the
Group has adequate sources of liquidity to fund the
Group’s working capital and to meet its debt
obligations as they become due based on the cash
flow forecast prepared by the directors and the net
consideration arising from the Transaction. Any
adverse result on the actual future cash flow would
affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment.  When
indication of impairment is identified, management
prepares discounted future cash flow to assess the
differences between the carrying amount and value
in use and provides for impairment loss.  Any
change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the
provision of impairment loss and affect the Group’s
financial position.

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of reporting
period. Where the estimation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives.
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SHEZEHERIN

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during the reporting period. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimation.

Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions during the
ordinary course of business for which calculations of
the ultimate tax provision is uncertain. The final
outcomes are subject to uncertainties and resulting
liabilities may exceed provisions or tax losses may
not be carried forward.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
related to tax loses, depends on the management'’s
expectation of taxable profit that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. Any
difference of the actual outcome and estimated
profit would affect the utilisation of deferred tax
assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are provision of
terminal, storage, warehousing and transshipment
services for oil and petrochemical products.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major service lines is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with EEMEREEAL
customers not within the scope  ZE15%% &1 & SMEY
of HKFRS 15 REEFEHW

[N

Continuing operations FEREXEK

Storage and warehousing income FEFRAEERA

Discontinued operations HIEREER

Storage and warehousing income FFERAEERA

Revenue from contracts with EAMEREEA
customers within the scope FEISREEAN
of HKFRS 15 RKEEFEHW

' ON

Continuing operations BEKEER

Port and transshipment income ARD ST TN

Discontinued operations HIEREER

Port and transshipment income ARDSE= TN

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using

the cumulative effect method. Under this
method, the comparative information is not
restated and was prepared in accordance with
HKAS 18 (see notel(c)(ii)). There is no impact
of transition to HKFRS 15 on accumulated

losses at 1 January 2018.

WAR D EH &

(a) WA
AEBZEBEBAREAR
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BEREHRE -

HEFAHNHNPWAREZR
BRBEDSHDEMT :

2017
—E—tF
(Restated)

(EE5)
$'000
T

108,909 85,563
118,658 124,394
227,567 209,957
32,647 25,149
33,789 39,047
66,436 64,196
294,003 274,153
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SHEZEHERIN

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and
by geographic markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i)
and 3(b)(iii) respectively.

In 2018, the Group has no customer (2017: Nil)
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenues. Details of concentrations of credit
risk arising from the Group’s major customers are
set out in note 23(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has
identified the following two reportable segments.
No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

—  Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"): this segment
represents the Group’s provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing and transshipment
activities carried out in Guangzhou, the PRC.

— Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group’s provision of
terminal, storage and transshipment activities
carried out in Dongguan, the PRC.

Discontinued operation — XHIT

As mentioned in notes 1 and 27, the entire equity
interest in GD (Panyu), which owns XHIT, was
conditionally agreed to be sold during the vyear
ended 31 December 2018. Management of the
Group considered that the disposal of the entire
equity interest in GD (Panyu) would be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification. Hence, the
assets of GD (Panyu) were classified as held for sale
and a single amount in the consolidated income
statement was presented in respect of GD (Panyu)’s
net profit for the year (with comparative figures re-
presented) following the requirement as set out in
note 1(u).
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

()

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
investments in subsidiaries and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
other payables and accruals attributable to the
individual segments and bank borrowings
managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit/(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”,
i.e. "adjusted earnings/(losses) before taxes”.
To arrive at “profit/(loss) before taxation”, the
Group’s earnings/(losses) are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation,
management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, interest
income and finance costs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTLF7R + BB A E BRI

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WKARDIHEE)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) BB/E (&

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) 7HXE -BERERE
(continued) (&)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HE_Z-—N\FRZZ
segments provided to the Group’s most senior ot e e SR |
executive management for the purposes of IEFE - FERHT A
resource allocation and assessment of segment SEESETHRERA
performance for the years ended 31 BUADBE IR KRGS
December 2018 and 2017 is set out below. BRRZAEEAI RS

DEERFHINTX -

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations

REREER RIEREER
DzIT XHIT Total
RMELE NRELE @it

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\E 2T £F -E-0\E 2T | -EB-N\E T tf
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(23] (23] (23]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2d O

Reportable segment revenue REFBHA 141,556 110,712 152,447 163,441 294,003 274,153
Reportable segment (loss)/profit REDBBRFA

before taxation (BR)/&H (53,409)  (39,655) 41,140 70217 (12,269) 30,562
Interest income FEMA 656 31 490 213 1,146 244
Finance costs BBRA 39,633 41,409 6,202 6,032 45,835 47,441
Reportable segment assets TREATEE 891,547 953,092  1,495866 1304578 2,387,413 2,257,670
Reportable segment liabilities TRESBEE 768,632 972,065 892,062 1,089,754 1,660,694 2,061,819
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment

revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue

Consolidated revenue

Profit/(loss)

Reportable segment (loss)/profit
before taxation

Unallocated other income

Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses

Consolidated (loss)/profit before
taxation

R/ (B#)

DR
(B8) /&7

A REMBA

ARERHBRAF
X

BARBAER)/
Ul

3

Continuing operations

BREERY

2018
“2-N\F

$'000
Fr

2017
ZE—t%
(Restated)

(&&3)
$/000
Tz

BARDBEE(E)
(b) HEME(E)
(i) TWHREDHBEA 8

Discontinued operations

RIEREXH
2018

“2-N\F

$'000

Fr

wmoEERREZHIER

2017 2018

2 t% -EB-N\%
(Restated)
(m=50)

$'000 $'000

T Tr

Total
gt

2017
ZT—tF
(Restated)
(m=50)
$'000

T

141,556 110,712 152,447 163,441 294,003 274,153
141,556 110,712 152,447 163,441 294,003 274,153
(53,409) (39,655) 41,140 70,217 (12,269) 30,562

2,600 252 - = 2,600 252
(38,707) (28,895) - = (38,707) (28,895)
(89,516) (68,298) 41,140 70,217 (48,376) 1919
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Segment reporting (continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Elimination of inter-segment
receivables

Unallocated head office and
corporate assets
Others

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities

Elimination of inter-segment
payables

Unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the Group’s
revenue from external customers and (ii) the
Group’s property, plant and equipment,
interests in land held for own use under
operating leases, intangible assets, non-current
prepayments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services
were provided. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the asset.

PRC (excluding Hong Kong)

— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

FE(TBREEE)

—FEEEER

—RUEBERK

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDERE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) HEW}/E (&)
(iii) Geographic information (i) HEER

TR BRABRLE
(\RNEBERESNEBEF A
72 A RGN & H
ZME - BB MEE
REKEMEOFERR
ZEIiiEs  BYEE
K 3E R B AT A
(HEEERBEED PRI
EHEER - BEM
e [ DA BR AR 75 2 1
R RIKIE - FEE IR

BEMEMRNEEZ
BRI RKE -

Revenues from external

customers

HNEMEFFREZBA

2017
s
(Restated)

(&)
$'000
T

141,556
152,447

110,712
163,441

294,003 274,153

Specified non-current assets

EEFRRBEE

&g
FR(TBREEE)

Hong Kong
PRC (excluding Hong Kong)

1,734 2,229
785,056 1,165,193
786,790 1,167,422
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OTHER INCOME

Continuing operations:

Interest income

Net foreign exchange gain
Reversal of other payables recognised in

prior years

Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Others

Discontinued operations:

Interest income
Government grants

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Reversal of other payables recognised in

prior years
Others
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3,165 —

1,158 1,946
R 7602 4328

490 213

305 740

(1,676) (11)

667 (474)

1,100 —

1,556 1,758
B 2442 | . 2,226

10,044 6,554




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

5 LOSS/(PROFIT) BEFORE TAXATION

Loss/(profit) before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs

Continuing operations:
Interest on bank loans

Discontinued operations:
Interest on bank loans

(b) Staff costs*

Continuing operations:

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (note 21)

Discontinued operations:

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

5 BRBIATEECEF)

BEBAEBECEF) DEHNRT
5l & RIRZER

2017
—T—tF
(Restated)

(RE3)
$'000
TIT

(a) B4 % A2
BEEEER:
RITEFMNE 39,633 41,409
IR
RITEHRME 6,202 [N 6,032
45,835 47,441
(b) B I g A*
BEEEER:
[\ 7€ B8 1 R AR
FHEIfEL Z R 1,578 1,247
HE - ITE R
E b 12 F 33,952 32,340
NEREE 2
5 X
(B 5£21) 6,800 —
o 42,330 33,587
RIE R
[\ 7 %8 1 ZUGR IR
sFEIEL Z 2,110 1,968
HE - ITER
E b 12 F 31,830 28,804
I 339490 30,772
76,270 64,359
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZ L3R « BHZBHERIN

5 LOSS/(PROFIT) BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5

(c)

Note:

Other items

Continuing operations:
Amortisation
— land lease premium
— intangible assets
Depreciation
Impairment losses
— consumable parts (note 12)
— trade receivables
(note 14)
Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— review services
Operating lease charges on
properties*

Discontinued operations:

Amortisation

— land lease premium

Depreciation

Impairment losses

— prepayments

Write down of consumable parts
(note 12)

Auditor’s remuneration

— other services

(c) EtEH

BFREREXRK:
# 55

—THHEER

— BEEE
e

1B &5 1R

— H#Em (f&E12)
— B REER
(F3E14)

1% BUED 5 B

— FE&R®

— EH R
MENKEHEE
ER*

RIEEEEK:
i

— THAES
e

VERIEN SEi

— JEft A
R OH FE &
(FF5E12)
A% BB 3 B

— H AR

Staff costs include $2,277,233 (2017: $1,800,000) relating
to operating lease charges on properties, which amount is
also included in the respective total amount disclosed

separately above.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated (see note 1(c)).
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BRBLATE R CRF) (&)

2017
—E—+F
(Note)
(BT %)

(Restated)
(& =:75))
$'000
T

4,926 4,791
170 170
60,915 59,978
2,134 2,364
38,353 =
1,478 1,358
380 380
5,717 5,232
1,318 1,709
18,705 23,682
6,872 2,311
— 382
980 =

& BETIRABEMENCEHES
F2,277,233(=Z & — & &
1,800,0007T) * #Z KB INaT AR
FHERIHENS B RER -

M R —E—N\F—-H-BAKEE
RERCEBHBHREEAF

1555 R 78 B 7% R & 2E RN 559
R o RIBFTIEEBMNBEE L I
EEHLEREFT(ZEME

1(c)) °



Notes to the Financial

Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

(a) Continuing operations
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents:

Current tax — PRC Corporate

Income Tax (note (i) TEFRE
(B 2 Gi) )
Current tax — PRC dividend
income withholding tax
(note (iii) (MTuE(HD)
Notes:

0]

(iii)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for
the year ended 31 December 2018 as the
Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits
Tax purposes for the year (2017: $Nil).

The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2018 was 25% (2017: 25%).

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
undistributed profits from GD (Panyu) of
RMB250,482,000 (equivalent to
$282,456,000) and of which RMB159,801,000
(equivalent to $180,199,000) related to
undistributed profits for the years ended 31
December 2008 to 2017, have been declared
to its holding company, Guangdong
Petro-Chemicals Company Limited, before the
completion of the transaction. Under the
grandfathering treatments, undistributed
profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at
31 December 2007 are exempted from
withholding tax. The amount
RMB250,482,000 (equivalent to
$282,456,000) was fully paid in February
2019 together with withholding tax liability of
$9,010,000.

ReBBmRPZAEH
(a) BHEEEER
() HREBBERPZFAEH

i

89

9,010

2017
—E—+F
(Restated)

(&L=75)
$'000
Tz

9,099

GEE

0]

(ii)

(iif)

=
=

A
||
m>=

- o
[1]

—Fﬁﬂ”h )

= B
of
2

- SN |

i
A

| it
ri &

BT I B
Ry

i

S
B e b 3

g 2
o SN B9 A o -

T

A
)

I ol B
ETINS i WA
0| |

A

|

=

R -
woE4*

T yE= |

2B,
- R

[l
> > B m

N —
w1

o

>
<
o

{2 (5 o o

>
A
£

59,801,0007T (48 &
7180,199,0007T) %4
I Tij\ii_
T —+F+ =
S+-BIREE Z
ADBFIE - ERR
ST AT REER A
ET%@E?EMKI%KE
NAIEIK - ERXH
%R/HE%IJT CINGESS
BR¥EREE—TT
TEF—A=1—AR
2 & 9 Be F E =
B - HH RS HE
A R #250,482,0007T
(#8 & 1°282,456,000
JO)EREMR G
9,010,000 LER —F
—NEFEZA%fte
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZ L3R « BHZBHERIN

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 HEBRRPZIMEHE)
STATEMENT (continued)
(a) Continuing operations (continued) () HELKEEK(E)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) BREABRSFEZBE
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: FXEGTERZHE
wmE

2017
—EF—LtF
(Restated)

(REF)
$'000
T

Loss before taxation B %% Al &5 18 (89,516) (68,298)

Notional tax on loss before tax, % i A A B 51 75

calculated at the rates AEEERER
applicable in the tax R RBREBA
jurisdictions concerned EEGFEZEE
B IA (19,293) (14,643)
Tax effect of non-deductible ~ AN H >~
expenses MGTE 13,403 2,413
Tax effect of non-taxable FERT U A 2 T 75
income wE (412) (132)
Tax effect of unused tax losses K #ER 2 %118 &5 18
not recognised 6,421 12,330
Utilization of tax loss not A BT RER
previously recognised MIAE R (47) —
Withholding tax on profits FE 2 R TE N
distributions 9,010 —
Others Hth 17 32
Actual tax expense EEREBIERZ 9,099 —
(b) Discontinued operations (b) ARIEEEER:
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income (i) HEeBEERPZABEHR
statement represents: 1
2017
—E—tF
(Restated)
(&E5)
$'000
T
Deferred tax — origination EIERTE — L
and reversal of temporary MEREEER
differences (note 18(b) o] 4 (Kf 3£ 18(b)
and 27) %27) 5,976 (675)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6
STATEMENT (continued)

(b)
()

(i)

Discontinued operations (continued)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents: (continued)

Notes:

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for
the year ended 31 December 2018 as the
Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits
Tax purposes for the year (2017: $Nil).

(i) The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was

25% (2017: 25%).

Reconciliation between tax expense/
(credit) and accounting profit at applicable
tax rates:

Profit before taxation B 2% A A
(note 27) (Pff 5£27)
Notional tax on profit before 1% i# 3 A & B3 i 15
tax, calculated at the rates AEEERERZ
applicable in the tax i 2= K BR B AT
jurisdictions concerned BAFEZEE
i I8
Tax effect of non-deductible NN 2 H
expenses 2
Tax effect of non-taxable IERTA Z BT
income TE
Tax effect of previously B RER 2 BIE
unrecognised tax losses BB ARF FEE
utilised/recognised this year R/ HERZ %
-2
Tax effect of reversal of B EATRER
previously recognised tax RIEEE 2
losses
Actual tax expense/(credit) ERBMERAS S
(E)

REeBBERPZAEH(E)

(b) HKRIEREXEK: (&)
(i) HZKEeBmRPZABH
(&)
B
(i) e e (S
T=F==Elk
FE - -REBHNE
Hms ARAE
ERERNELE
B -AKTERE
R BB A IR B
(ZZ—+t&F:4|)
(i) A E s 4
T= B =Esr—[Elk
EE PR EA
AZHERBAHEA
Wh(= =2 = &
£ :25%) °
(i) ZREABEGTE2ZBIE
X (ER)EHes
B ZEHERNOT ¢
2017
—E—tF
(Restated)
(& &E75)
$'000
T
41,140 70,217
10,479 17,484
852 160
(9,793) (632)
— (17,687)
4,438 —
5,976 (675)
—E-NFFR 149
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150

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2018

7 EEMe
BIECE B R BMEH) 5E383(1) & &
NE(BBESMTER) RHIE2
HHEBECEEHMEWT

—E-N\F

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based

Directors'  and benefits scheme payment
fee inkind contributions (note)
§M 2ERE BifitE  WRAREEZ
R & 5 X (M)
§1000 §1000 §1000 §1000
n tn n tn
Executive directors UfiEs
David An ik - 538 60 - 5443
Yang Dong RS - 1274 60 1,067 2401
Liu Zhijun 458 - 915 60 960 199
Zhang Lei K& - 1,209 60 960 229
Independent non-executive directors BUf4nEs
Li Wai Keung 3E% 10 - - 160 20
Chan Chun Wai, Tony kg 10 - - 160 20
Hai Hiu Chu (appointed on 23 October 2017)  ZER(R-3—+&
tA-+z0kzfH) 10 - - 160 20
360 8,841 10 3467 12,908

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company's share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(n)
(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in
the directors’ report and note 21.
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B e X FHRBEA R A E AR &
FTEEZBREGIER - ZF
BREEESREASERHE
D AT & D S 2 5 2 & &t
BT A E  XREZBEE
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B ARG TACZRTERR
A HHOR I
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RAREMEL ZERERE) D
EEEeRE 2[BRES S
—BR R 21 HKEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

7  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 EEMe#E)
2017 —E—tF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fee in kind contributions
e = EAREE
Xk Bl {5
$'000 $'000 $'000
T i T
Executive directors HiTEE
David An #fE — 4,968 60 5,028
Yang Dong RS - 1,274 50 1324
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEHR-Z—+%
(resigned on 24 February ZRAZTHBEEE)
2017) — 992 10 1,002
Liu Zhijun AELE — 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei RE = 1,209 60 1,269
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (re- ENMI(RZE—+F
designated from independent +A-+=HBBY
non-executive director to FRTESRM
executive director on 23 BBTEZLR
October 2017 and resigned on ~ —Z—/\F A
23 February 2018) —+=HEH) — 244 8 252
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITES
directors
Li Wai Keung EX L 120 — — 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIk 120 = = 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (re- EMI(R=F—t&
designated from independent THZt=RH@
non-executive director to BUFRTESAE
executive director on 23 BETEZLR
October 2017 and resigned on ~ —Z—/\F A
23 February 2018) —+=HEE) 90 — - 90
Hai Hiu Chu (appointed on 23~ EZBEHK(R-FT—+4F
October 2017) TAZT=R%E
Zft) 30 — - 30
360 9,662 248 10,270
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no BHEZT—NFRZZE—tF+=
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the A=T—HIFE ARARHPES
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out R R E F 3 T XM 8Tt A
in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining BEERFTMALTHRERALTRHSE -
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There VAR B 18 % hn B2 AN & B 3k N A 7&
was no arrangement under which a director waived or MRS IERBRBE - F - H
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years. B VLRENREZTRESNRE

MEERME -
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2017: five) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
emolument in respect of the remaining individual is as
follows:

REFMAL
RAKERERRHFMALH - M
Z(ZF—1t&F: 2B ALTHRE
RAEE EMEe N E7TRE -
BTIATZFHMET

Salaries and other benefits 5B B B fth I 2
Share-based payments ARR 0 A B 2 2

Contributions to defined contribution M) 7 B8 FGR K 5T 21

retirement plans fEH 2 K

The emolument of the remaining individual with the
highest emoluments is within the following band:

650 =
160 =

60 =

870 =

RRFMBTALZMEEAT
BENA :

2018 2017
—B-N\#F —E—tF

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE AE

Nil-$1,000,000 £ %£1,000,0007T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per
share is based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $62,406,000 (2017:
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $355,000) and the weighted average of
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2017: 3,732,638,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year. The relevant
calculation is as follows:

BR(EE) BF
BREAREE(HFE) BA
BREAREE(SE) BFT
BIEFRARR R 2T ERREE
1 &5 #862,406,0007T (= & — +
O N/NE T e 31 i K b
355,0007T) & B % 17 & 3@ A% hn #E
S 15 #13,732,638,0000% L@ (=
T — 4 4 : 3,732,638,0000% & @
RIGTE - BEAGTEMT

(Loss)/profit attributable to ZERBKRRENS
ordinary equity shareholders (B8 HF
— continuing operations — FEBEREER
— discontinued operations — R EET

(94,757) (64,866)
32,351 65,221
(62,406) 355

Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings EREAREHE
per share (B8] &R
— continuing operations — FEREER
— discontinued operations — R ET

The diluted (losses)/earnings per share is the same as the
basic (losses)/earnings per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

(2.54 centsfill)
0.87 cents{l

(1.74 centsfll)
1.75 centsfll

(1.67 centsfill)  0.01 centsfll

HREBEEZE-_ZE—N\FR-_ZT—+
F+-_A=+—BHItEEIEMT
M EA#EER 2 BETRR WS
#E (e BREEGREAR
(B18) BFHEF -

—E-N\FFRH 153
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTLF7R + BB A E BRI

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 YE -BERIKE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHR
Interests in
[and held
for own
use under
Dock and operating
storage 0ffice Maotor Leasehold ~ Construction |eases
Buildings facilities ~ equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Subtotal  (note (b))
EEREERZ
1R
RE  HENERE Uk GE{)
§1000 §000 §000 §000
n n n n
Cost AR
At 1 January 2018 #=%-NE-5-A 51,984 1,864,625 8519 19,69 1892 - 1.946,778 306,879 2,253,657
Exchange adjustments EfHZ 239 (85,35) (283) (821) - - (88,853) (14,116) (102,969)
Additions RE - 3014 1291 - - 9.210 13575 - 13575
Disposals & - (13,080) (201) (151) - - (15,246) - (15,246)
Redlssfication to asset dlssfed BiARARA
s held for sale note 27) ELE L BE
(&) (18,653) (681,548) (2,703) (10,289) - - (113193) (75,842) (789,035)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E
tZh=t-A 30,940 1,087,657 48m 8431 189 9210 1,143,061 16921 1,359,982

Accumulated depreciation and ZifERAY:

amortisation:
At 1 January 2018 R=3-\E-f-H 18,147 978178 6,31 17814 1283 - 1,021,713 09,463 1,091,176
Eichange adjustments EiSE (893) (47.398) (219 (149) - - (49,254) (3.428) (52,682)
Charge for the year EEHE 1547 76,964 611 18 316 - 79,620 6,44 85,864
Written back on disposals WHERRR - (11,688) (1,746) (136) - - (13,570) - (13,570)
Reciassfication to asets clasiied EAENEA
s held for sale note 27) e RE
(&) (11,041) (480,565) (1,481) (9,079 - - (502,166) (37,902) (540,068)
At 31 December 2018 RI3-N\E
tZA=1-A 1760 515491 3401 8,092 1599 - 536,343 343m 570,720
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2018 NE-NE
t-A=1-A 3180 572,166 1410 339 2193 9270 606,718 182,544 789,262
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA7 L3Il 7R + 3 A =E 83 & B 5h)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

Cost:
At 1 January 2017

Exchange adjustments
Transfer

Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 January 2017

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2017

Net book value:
At 31 December 2017

RIE—t#F
t=A=+-H

RtTEREH:

RZE—+F
-A-H
EiR%
FEHE
REEREE

RIE—t%
t=A=t-H

RAFE:
KIE—t#
t=AZt-H

Buildings

Dock and
storage
facilities

Office
equipment

10 ¥ -BERREE)
SREEH &R (Z)

(a)

Motor
vehicles

Leasehold
improvements

Sub-total

Interests in
land held
for own
use under
operating
leases
(note (b))

i

48578 1,736,797 7,245 18,514 1892 1,813,026 286,773 2,099,799
3,406 122,089 485 1,184 = 127,164 20,106 147,270
= 1,470 o = = 1470 = 1,470
= 4211 950 = = 5221 = 5221
= ) (101) = = (109) = (109)
51,984 1,864,625 8,579 19,698 1,892 1,946,778 306879 2,253,657
15,369 835,862 5380 16,467 967 874,045 58,611 932,656
1,139 61,561 353 1,053 — 64,106 4,352 68,458
1,639 80,762 589 354 316 83,660 6,500 90,160
- U (91 - - (%8) - (%)
18,147 978,178 6,231 17,874 1,283 1,021,713 69,463 1,091,176
33837 886,447 2,348 1,824 609 925,065 237416 1,162,481
(b) AEEETERTHERT

The Group was granted the rights to use the land
by the PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years.

The net book value as at 31
includes an amount of $4,741,000

December

2018
(2017

$6,743,000) which is disclosed as interest in land
held for own use under operating leases under

current assets.

T RAMERN  HEHA
50Ff e R-_ZE—N\F+_A8
=t+—HZEEFERNSE
4 584,741,000 (Z T —+
£F 1 6,743,0007T) * E R

BEET ZIRE

e

HEH

EERzLEEPRE -

—E-N\FER
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10

1

156

(c)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The analysis of net book value of properties is
as follow:

10

ME-BERREE)

(c)

MEREFEZ2OT :

In PRC:
Medium-term leases

Representing:
Buildings

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
At 1 January
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value:
At 31 December

R E :
HHEIA A

'8

BF

RELEHERE
BAZ Lt

1

R+=-—A=+—H

R
®—A—A
FE 34 35 2
EEE

R+-—A=+—H

REFEE:

R+-_A=+—H

The amortisation charge for the year is included in

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income

statement.
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205,724 2Nz

23,180 33,837

182,544 237,416

205,724 271,253
BREE

Club memberships
2%

3,893 3,859
(24) 34
B 3869 3,893
2,150 1,959
(16) 21
170 170
o 2,304 2,150
1,565 1,743
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

12 CONSUMABLE PARTS 12 HEMR
(a) Consumable parts in the consolidated balance (a) HEEEABRAZHER
sheet comprise: B

Consumable parts JH FE G 8,284 11,083
(b) The analysis of the amount of consumable parts (b) BRABBEIETABZZHE
recognised as an expense and included in profit EmEEIMWMT :

or loss is as follows:

2017
—E—tF
(Restated)

(mE=31)
$'000
TIT

Continuing operations: BEKEER:
Impairment losses of B R EEE
consumable parts 5(c) 2,134 2,364

Discontinued operations:  #& IE &% ¥ 5% :
Write down of consumable il )5 8 & &

parts 5(c) — 382

2,134 2,746
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary shares unless otherwise indicated.

REWEAF
UTIRR B AEEIOEE
EESABEREATENNBLR
AlzHE -BRIERARHA - BRI
Rz B BRI AT EK-

158

Name of subsidiary

WEARARE

Continuing operations
%%

#

Place of
operation

BEHE

Place of
incorporation/
HEMHEN

SRR L

B2

Particulars of
issued and
paid up capital
ERTREAR
RAFE

Attributable
equity interest

P R
Directly Indirectly
i=§:3 CE:

Principal activities

TEXH

Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares of — 100%  Provision of administrative
Limited % Bk $1 each services
BERMELIERAR 20,000,0008% RETHRS
BREMEIT
Oriental Point International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of = 100% Inactive
RREBERAA EE Bk $1 each HEXH
1,000,000f%
BREEIT
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% —  Provision of administrative
KFrRERERAH Bk Bk $1 each services
10,0008 RETHRSE
BREEIT
Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company  Hong Kong British Virgin Islands 100 shares of 100% — Investment holding
Limited % HEERX US$1 each REER
ERBBOALIAERAR 100%
BREMEIET
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical PRC PRC RMB4,820,800 = 92%  Investment holding
Development Limited il il AR #4,820,8007T REZR
BMRRARCIERERAR
(T A1L])
Dongguan Dongzhou International PRC PRC RMB555,000,000 — 92%  Provision of terminal,
Petrochemical Storage Limited F F AR #555,000,0007C storage and
RemRMEERERERAR transshipment services
(TRMEER 1) RETE HTRRES
R %
Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd. PRC PRC RMB5,000,000 — 92%  Investment holding
(“GHEIL") (Note 3) HE HE (Note 4) REER
BN ERREREABRAR AR #5,000,0007
(TEMZER(HHE3) (Fit£4)
Discontinued operations
RIEREEH
GD (Panyu) PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 — 92%  Provision of terminal,
BiF(HB) H H AE#220,000,0007T storage, warehousing
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13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note 1: GD (Panyu) and GHEIL are sino-foreign equity joint
venture companies and Ff A L and EIMNBIE are
limited liability companies. The official names of 1 #& A
{t and BEJMEIFE are in Chinese and the English
translations are for reference only.

Note 2: MEIFR and F &AL are wholly owned by GHEIL.
Before December 2018, EMEFE and F AL were
wholly owned by GD (Panyu).

Note 3: GHEIL was incorporated during the year.

Note 4: The amount represented the registered share capital
which is not paid up yet.

The following table lists out the information relating to (i)
GHEIL and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018, (ii)
GD (Panyu) as at 31 December 2018 and (iii) GD (Panyu)
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017, which are
the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interest (“NCI”) as at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017 respectively. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

13

REMBRR (&)

M B8 (EB) REMNER BT
SERNAE - FRALRREM
BREAAEREEAR - FE
ALRRMNBEREZEXAHEE
PX - EXBEEHRSZE

MigE2 - MBI KB IB AL mEME
B2BEEAE - NR_FT—N\F
T Az RNEER RS
AlthEE(ER) 2EHEE -

MeEs : BMERBRNFEANEMAKL -

MisEd - Z R M AR A A R AR
7 o

TERENEEBAEESFR-Z
=NET=F=F=ER=5—F
F+-_BA=+t—HEBEAEE KR
ez ([FEE R ER]D MK B A
ANEMNERRENBRARR_E
—NFE+-_A=+—H"(i)BF
(FEEB)R=-_Z—NF+=A
=+—HB R(ilBEFR) EE
WEARR -_ZT—+t%+ A
=+—HMER - TXE2V K
R AR e R CINCIN E E
A& % o
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 REWEBEARGE)

2018 2017

—E-N\F T+ F

$'000 $'000 $'000

T T Tr

GHEIL and its GD  GD (Panyu) and its

subsidiaries (Panyu) subsidiaries

BMES B (FR) R

HMEAF E5(E8) HiB AR

NCI percentage FERERBED L 8% 8% 8%

Non-current assets FRBEE 787,425 — 1,170,348

Current assets MEEE 412,209 743,756 186,936

Current liabilities nEEE (997,401) (378,912) (105,766)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (661,948) — (1,012,087)

Net (liabilities)/assets (B EE (459,715) 364,844 239,431

Carrying amount of NCl FERERREE (36,777) 29,187 19,154

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

$'000 $'000 $'000

Tr Tr Tr

GHEIL and its GD  GD (Panyu) and its

subsidiaries (Panyu) subsidiaries

BEMNEER B (EB) REK

HE A E5(%R) B

Revenue g 141,556 152,447 273,331

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EB),/ &5 (48,215) 35,164 27,980

Total comprehensive income e N L (47,785) 35,228 29,024
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI SREFEREZN

(B#8) /& H (3,858) 2,813 2,239

Dividends paid to NCI e FE 1 AR AR R A AR 2 — 24,858 =

2018 2017

“Z-)N\% “E—+F

$'000 $'000 $'000

Tr Tr Tr

GHEIL and its GD  GD (Panyu) and its

subsidiaries (Panyu) subsidiaries

BEMER BE(FEB) K

HE A EB(ER) Hi B2

Cash flows from operating activities EXTHELATHERE (400,807) 583,031 154,123

Cash flows from investing activities REGRDELRENE 885,051 (4,118) (8,251)

Cash flows from financing activities METHELRERE (101,289) (121,059) (127,105)
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EBEZRHMEWRKIE

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance MR EERENE S
(note) JE Uk BR SR (BT ) 18,257 79,368

Financial assets measured at amortised 3R ¥k 5K RNt 2

cost MEREE 18,257 79,368
Prepayments and other receivables T8 T FRIE K B b fE UL
KR 6,650 6,540
24,907 85,908
Note: The Group has concluded that there would be no material Me: AEERA/YVFERFRE
impact for the initial application of the new impairment RE (BB E1000) BT E
requirements (see note 1(c)(i)). EERTE -
The amounts of the prepayments and other receivables R —FrKEXERSER
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after ZTENFKIE R HAMEKKIER
more than one year are $598,000 (2017: $810,000). 598,0007T (= & — + 4 : 810,000
Apart from these, the prepayments and other receivables TT) o BR Uk 2 AN - A FRIE R H
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense FE W RIETE HAdS I — SF ik B 5k
within one year. BRREEM -
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14

162

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance, is as follows:

14

ES R HAMEKNEE)

BRiR 2

RERER REZBZAHRK
BN &R E 5B UBERNK
(Gt AE 5 & H b U 50 IR)
ZEREBE DT

(a)

Within 1 month — @A A
Over 1 month but within —@mAMNE
2 months BREAR
Over 2 months but within N {E A A £
3 months B=@EAR
Over 3 months but within =8 AN E
6 months BREAA

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only
available to major customers with well-established
trading records. The Group allows an average credit
period of 30 days to its trade customers. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade debtors are set out in note
23(a).
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17,491 37,031
470 1,182

8 69

288 41,086
18,257 79,368
BT e ER B AR A
—&1%#%%&&%%%;&%&
LEBEF -AKREGTE

HEPFHIORZREEE -

BRAAKEEERRRES

REERELZEERRZ
#— TR BERKE23@) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14
Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired are as follows:

(b)

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 2 months past due

Over 2 months past due

I 48 78 H s 0 (B
BN —1{EA
BH—-E=mEHA
780 2 8 58 = {iE A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

Balance at 31 December 2017
under HKAS 39

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9 (note 1(c)(i))

Balance at 1 January

Amounts written off during the
year

Impairment losses recognised
during the year

Exchange difference

Balance at 31 December

RIBECE A 25 ER)
F395 N T —+

F+-_A=+—H
B 45 54
BIXERCE B

&= E A FENR
V& & (i EE1()))

R—A— B &R

F M IE IR

F AR R EEE

ME N = RE

R+=—A=+—H
B 48 B8

E5RHAMERKEE)

(b) 36 %% fE 89 B 5 BB WAR K
I AR BIRENE 5 R
R R DA

17,491 37031
470 1,182

8 69

288 41,086
18,257 79,368

I AR 78 2 30 (B 2 B W SR IR
HERZMPRBRRLERLZ
EFAM-

FAE ZEWKIA MR EE
BRERZFHOT

38,353 =
574 —

38,927 —
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14

164

SHEZEHERIN

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)
At 31 December 2018, receivables that were past
due mainly represented an amount of $38,927,000
(2017: $40,961,000) due from a customer
(“Customer A") that was in financial difficulty. To
reclaim the trade debts, the Group filed an
application to the court in the PRC and the court
granted the Group a lien on Customer A’s goods
stored at the storage facilities of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2015. Subsequently,
the goods were sold by the court through an
auction in 2016 and the related sale proceeds of the
goods (“the auction proceeds”) are being held
under the custody of the court since then.

In June 2018, the Group has filed a written request
to the court for releasing the auction proceeds to
the Group. However, no formal reply has been
received from the court regarding (i) the exact
amount of sales proceeds to be received and (ii) the
relevant receipt timeline up to the date of this
report.

In December 2018, forced execution processes in
respect of the auction proceeds and distribution of
Customer A’s assets were initiated and applied by
the first mortgagor of Customer A, a third party.
The court has accepted this application. However,
there is no further progress in this aspect up to the
date of this report.

Based on the foregoing and considering the
complexity of the forced execution processes and
the number of related creditors involved therein, the
directors have reassessed the recovery of receivables
due from Customer A during the year ended 31
December 2018. The directors are of the opinion
that the expected credit losses of the amount due
from Customer A as at 31 December 2018
amounting to $38,927,000 was necessary to be
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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ES R HAMEKNEE)

(b)

FEBENE S ERERE)
AR NS E RS qree
H @fERFEEELNR
BE—REVHRR#EZREF
([BFRDzEKFKIES
38,927,0007T (=& — £ ¢
40,961,0007T) ° AU EE 5
EWRER BHE_ZT—AF
= B = — B EEEE @ As
£ BB [ BEERTR B
B mARERZERR T
AEERBEFPREFHREAS
BeREtEcEREERE
-HB R-_ZT—/NE-
ZEEMEEREBEELE -
BEmMBEMEEFEHRE
([TAE B RIE]) B kA

FERE °

R-FE-N\EXA A&H
ERVAREXEMEAR &
RAASERERE SR
e AT AEE R KRR
e e 21 B8 14 (i) S s 2 &Y B 1)
FISREEBERINEZAR
& B HI R0 A8 B8 U SR B R R Y
IEAEE -

R-FB—N\F+=-A HE
FIERERDREFFEE
MRHIMITIEFATPFE
—HEBA(E=T7)ELYL A
FoEREEXZHBEF A
m-BEEXREBEH T
I B — TR o

2 £ TRt 2 ZE A 58 A 1T
TR B8 B A R E A K
REBEREANAS EF
BREEE—E-NE+ =
A=+ BLFEEREKERP
RREzA WO T EER
BESEREE-_ZT—N\F
+-A=+—BIEE®AR
R_ZE—NF+=—A=+—
HERKREFFRREBEZEHRE
B §5484£38,927,0007T °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A 7T 3R + 5 A = B3 & BR 51

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)
Apart from the above, receivables that were past
due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance
was necessary in respect of these balances as there
had been no significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group kept assessing the expected credit loss of all
the receivables and established a provision for
doubtful debts, if any. The provision for doubtful
debts is recorded using a provision account unless
the Group is satisfied that the recovery is remote, in
which case the expected credit loss is written off
against the receivables and the provision for
doubtful debts directly. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(a)

Cash at bank and on hand

RITERERE

14

15

5 R H A ERREE)

(b)

WERAENESERENR(E)
Bk EXFratsh - 2 BmEIE R
R B O FE Ui R IR B B B
EFBER REFEAKER
BRUERFEk- RIFBE
R - EEEMRE BEE
BRHBENEH MERD
BAER BB - BB F
RERRT = B 1F R E R -

B S iee =8
=+t—HLEFE AKEF
BTGP A W OR M TR
FEEBRIRERER(M
B)BE - RERBHENRE
BRACER  BRIFASEREEA
YR U BERTE
HESBEREXREKREA
RRZRBEME AEH
VERZSERTETME
#me

RERARESERERRERE

's

(a)

REeRAEESEBRBBE:

881,071 41,161
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to
cash generated from operations:

(Loss)/profit before taxation B%%R?‘? (B8~
i A
— Continuing operations — BEREER
— Discontinued operations =~ — #&R |F A& & 7%
Adjustments for: # D/\;I;%IE{’EHJ'
= .
Interest income LUEERIN
Finance costs B 7 A AR
Depreciation e
Amortisation of land lease T b A & B % o
premium
Amortisation of intangible mREE#E
assets
Impairment of prepayments & ZX B (E
Impairment of consumable  SE#E SR E
parts
Written down of OB E 7

consumable parts

Equity-settled share-based EREE 2
payment expenses B 2
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWS -
property, plant and = I 2%
equipment 2z ks,
& 1B
Impairment of trade E 5 WA
receivables DERIE]
Exchange differences ME 5, = 5
Changes in working capital: &E&4 2 &5
Decrease in consumable JH RE R
parts
Decrease/(increase) in trade & 5 & H {th fE
and other receivables Wk Em A
(38 )
Increase in other payables H b e FRIB R
and accruals FTIRE A g N
Cash generated from KEZLIEMSHE
operations

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS
9 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods
chosen, comparative information is not restated. See
note 1(c).
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RERAEEERERRERE

&R (&)
(b) BRFAT(EE) RFELE
EEMEBREZHER:

2017

—E—+F

(Note)

(Bff 5% )

(Restated)

(L=75)

$'000

Tz

(48,376) 1,919
(89,516) (68,298)
41,140 70,217
(1,453) (249)
45,835 47,441
79,620 83,660
6,244 6,500
170 170
6,872 2,311
2,134 2,364

— 382

6,800 —
(1,489) 11
38,353 —
(593) (120)

244 592
21,157 (14,014)
92 2,363
155,610 133,330

fisg: R—ZFE—-NF—H—H
AEBBRERGERE
B 75 3R & 2 RID 155K
K KE 8 B 7% 3R & E R
o5 - IRIFFTEEN B
B A WEED R
2o B -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (VA& 7T 7R - 5 A &L B8 & B 1)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as
cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2018 RZZTE—N\F
—A—8
Changes from financing MERESRENSE
cash flows: B :
Advances from a related — BB 2EX
party KIE
Repayment of bank loans/to (E &R 1T B HE 7
a related party B
Interest paid [=EREAPS)
Total changes from financing FIE IR &R EEH
cash flows A Ef
Exchange adjustments b 5, 8 &
Other changes: Hith 5 :
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) F 2 BA 5% (B &=
5(a))
Total other changes HiEsa st
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZT—N\%F
+=ZA=+—H

15 REPBELSEEEERBEESARE
BH(E)

(c)

Amounts
due to
related
parties

FEAS BRI 5
RIE

$'000

Tt

(Note 19)
(H7E19)

MEFHELEZREYHR

TRHAJNAEEERERY
EEZABEH FHE B
RRELKIFREEEH - BE
ABELCRARESEBRTE
ReERnEIAKBESRER
RAKRESEARERERD
BRRETDRMELAZRS

MEZARE-

Bank loans

RITER
$'000
Tz
(Note 17)
(M 5E17)

265,094 986,964 1,252,058
30,465 = 30,465
(88,927)  (61,656)  (150,583)
= (45,940)  (45,940)
_ lsasem (0D SEE  (EE05E)
(797)  (45269)  (46,066)
= 45,835 45,835
I v e
205835 879,934 1,085,769
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 15 RERBLEEEERBESRE
FLOW INFORMATION (continued) BHR(E)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (0 RMEIDEEZABHE
financing activities (continued) (&

Amounts
due to
related
parties Bank loans

e B

Z B HITEXR
$'000 $'000
T+t T+t
(Note 19) (Note 17)
(B$3E19) (ft5E17)

At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—tF—H
—H 259,089 980,433 1,259,522
Changes from financing BEBRSHKENS
cash flows: B :
Advances from a related — B 2 BX
party KIE 19,132 — 19,132
Repayment of bank loans/to (Ei& R 1T B 7
a related party B3 (19,606) (59,973) (79,579)
Interest paid EENEN — (47,526) (47,526)
Total changes from financing BEBREREEH
cash flows &s (474)  (107,499)  (107,973)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 3 6,479 66,589 73,068
Other changes: Hi#5:
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) I 8 F sz
(PBf3E5(a)) — 47,441 47,441
Total other changes Ht#HE st e 47,441 47,441
At 31 December 2017 R-_T—+F
+=—A=+—8H 265,094 986,964 1,252,058
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16

17

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Consideration received from disposal

of a subsidiary (note) B e W (X (B (BT =)
Other creditors and accruals HiEARTR K
HRE A

Note:

At 31

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
consideration received in advance from Guangzhou Gas
Group Company Limited relating to disposal of GD
(Panyu) of $890,206,000 according to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement and this amount was secured by
certain of the Group’s dock and storage facilities with net
book value of $4,549,000 as at 31 December 2018 and
92% of GD (Panyu)'s equity interest with the
corresponding issued and paid up capital of
RMB202,400,000 as an indemnity arrangement for
Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited as the
Transaction was not completed as at 31 December 2018.

December 2018 and 2017, all of the other

payables and accruals are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank
loans and other borrowings is as follows:

(a)

Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans RITE X

16

& — R B A A

17

HttENRARGTRER

890,206 =

51,100 54,777

941,306 54,777

Mg = AESS = NEF B ==
BILEEE A£EREEEH
ERLEBRS(FBE)MUYE
M MR R & B A R A A AT dE
K 78 Y2 R {8 3X890,206,000
T ZEEARERE TS
BEREFHRER=ZZ—N\F
+-_A=+—BEEFEAE
4,549,00070) R BF (FR) K
NWBIEGEREEHTRESR
B & A R #202,400,0007T)
{EIRHR - (EAAEINRREE
ERAAAITANBER
e RERABRSIR_Z—\F
+ZA=1t—BERERK-

RTERRAEMEER
() RTERRHMEEREE
Mo

90,162 64,601
B 89,772 ¢ e

879,934 986,964
—2-N\EEHR 169
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17

170

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2018, the bank loans and other

borrowings were repayable as follows:

Bank loans (secured)
Within 1 year or on demand

After 1 year but within 2 years —FZEBMFER
After 2 years but within 5 years FMERZERFR
After 5 years hF1&

At 31 December 2018, the Group had banking
facilities totalling $879,934,000 (2017:
$986,964,000) which were secured by certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment with net
book value of $645,589,000 (2017: $739,398,000)
and interests in land held for own use under
operating leases with net book value of
$210,671,000 (2017: $224,993,000). The banking
facilities were utilised to the extent of $879,934,000
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: $986,964,000).
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17 BTEXRRHMEEE)
R-B-NEt+=-A=1+-—
B BITERKHEMBEER
RTFIHEER:

(b)

RITER(FEH)
R—FEAREEKE

I 90,162 I gtexy L CT
118,694 94,509
534,124 672,332
136,954 155,522

. 789,772 WNER ZZEC TN
879,934 986,964

(c)

RZE—NF+_A=+—
H A&EBZRITHMEREE
4 #£879,934,0007T (—E—+
£ : 986,964,0007T) * J JA AR
£ B iR M )% (8 A645,589,000
o (=ZF —-£4 : 739,398,000
TC) Z W E - BRE R KRR
TR {E /4210,671,0007T (=&
— - 4F : 224,993,0007T) Z &
BREHERBIEE AL
ZHEEERB RN
F+—-_A=+—H EBE&H
Z TR EEE A
879,934,000 (=T —t 4 ¢
986,964,0007T,) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheet represents:

18 GEREEEREBEXRTZHAEHR

(a)

HEEERBRZAEBHE
ig :

PRC Corporate Income Tax

tax

PB RS
PRC dividend income withholding Bl % 8 Uk A B3 F¢

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 January 2017

Exchange adjustments

Credited to profit or loss
(note 6(b))

At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2018
Exchange adjustments

Credited to profit or loss
(note 6(b))

At 31 December 2018

EEBHERE :
R-FE—EF
—A—H
ME 5
AR &
(Fi 5E6(b))

R_F—+F
+=—A=+—H

R=ZF—NF
—A—H

I 5, 3 &

FABEE
(P 7E6(b) )

R=B—NF+=A
=+-8

86 =

9,010 =

9,096 —

(b)

Future
benefits of

tax losses
HEBEBEZ
R R F &=
$'000

T

ERZELEHAEEREE
F AR S BN K P HE
RZBELERBEAE(BE)
ARE Y REBBIERINT

Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation
BHERETE
WiTERE
$'000

T

(6,023) 3,952 (2,071)
(427) 257 (170)
(138) (537) (675)

(6,588) 3,672 (2,916)

(6,588) 3,672 (2,916)

59 (148) (89)

6,529 (553) 5,976

— 2,971 2,971
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SHEZEHERIN

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(o), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of the cumulative tax losses of
approximately $537 million (2017: $587 million) as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax
losses of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries will expire in
5 years after the relevant tax losses were incurred
while tax losses for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested
enterprise to its foreign investors are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10% unless reduced by
treaty (5% for foreign investors who are registered
in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria).
Under the grandfathering treatments, undistributed
profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding
tax.

At 31 December 2017, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
amounted to $236,378,000. Deferred tax liabilities
of $11,819,000 have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that the profits will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2018, the profits of these
subsidiaries were distributed under the Transaction
and withholding tax was recognised in this regard
(note 6(a)).
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AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries, bonuses
and certain allowances of its staff to the retirement
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contribution under the scheme. The Group has no other
material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual
contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

19
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SHEZEHERIN

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force for a
period of 10 years from adoption and expires on 27
December 2022.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at their discretion grant options to any
eligible participant including any employee, director,
consultant, agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner of the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company, or any supplier or provider
of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries
of the Company, to take up options at a consideration of
$1 per each option grantee to subscribe shares of the
Company, as may be determined by the directors from
time to time to subscribe for the shares of the Company.
The options vest on 31 May 2019 and are then
exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August 2028.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company.

On 30 August 2018, 65,000,000 options and 62,500,000
options were granted to directors and employees of the
Group by the Company under the scheme respectively.
The directors estimated the weighted average fair value of
each option at the grant date to be $0.12.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
$6,800,000 (2017: $Nil) were recognised in the
consolidated income statement (note 5(b)) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of
the Directors and employees during the year ended 31
December 2017 and no share option was outstanding
under the scheme as at 31 December 2017.
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21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 21 UREBZEECRORS (E)
(continued)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants that (i) FRAEEERERLEZHER

existed during the year are as follows:

Number of

instruments  Vesting conditions

IRARE BERHE

Rig#4mMT

Contractual life
of options

BRESHAR

Options granted to directors

RTEEZBRE

— on 30 August 2018 65,000,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

== e = e RZE-hAERA=+—8 10F
2EGE

Options granted to employees

BTEE ZBRE

— on 30 August 2018 62,500,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

—RZE-N\ENA=TAH RZZE-NERA=T—H 105
2EGE

Total 127,500,000

st

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise (i) BREZHERMNEFLHEIT
prices of the share options are as follow: FEEMT :

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
illp:
THTHEE BRERA
2018
“E-N\f
Qutstanding at the RENKTHE
beginning
of the year - —
Granted during the year ~ RERRH $0.236 127,500,000

QOutstanding at the end of REXRKITE

the year $0.236 127,500,000

No shares options were exercised during the year
(2017: Not applicable).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had
an exercise price of $0.236 (2017: Not applicable)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 9.7 years (2017: Not applicable).

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options

e

FHIEE  BREHE
2017
—T—+F

T—tF:TEA) -

RZE—NFEF+ZA=+—
AR ARITEAERETEE
/0236 (ZFE —+tF :
AR RMEFELSRGE D
BHAEIIF(ZE—tF: T
HH) -
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of the options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
options granted is measured by reference to fair
value of the options granted. The estimate of fair
value of options granted is measured based on a
binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

Fair value at measurement date $0.12
Vesting period 9 months
Share price $0.236
Exercise price $0.236
Expected volatility 54%
Option life 10 years
Expected dividends Nil %
Risk-free interest rate 2.17%

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis
of weekly share prices of the Company over the
past years immediately preceding the grant date.
The calculation is based on the assumption that
there is no material difference between the
expected volatility over the whole life of the options
and the historical volatility of the shares of
Company. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement of
the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below.

The Company

Share
capital

A
§'000
T

22

premium
R 7 4 (B
$'000
Tr

BEXRK B

(a)

RBARID 228
AEMR G #ES S AN D
HRH) R R S R Y YRR B
MEEREEHR - ARAF
flEl 4 = AR A BE 0 IO AN 4 B
MERROEEF IR0
o

ZIN/NEC]

Share-based
Share compensation Accumulated

reserve losses

Rt EmEs  2HER

§'000 $'000
T T

Balance 1 January 2017 R-B—t#F

—-B-Rz&t 373,264 710,477 — (553,139) 530,602
Changes in equity for 2017: —Z—tF##%
#E:
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBER2E
income for the year W B — — — (4,220) (4,220)
Balance at 31 December R-ZB—t#&
2017 and 1 January 2018 T=ZA=+-H
(Note) R=E-N\%
—B-Rz&t
(Kt &E) 373,264 710,477 — (557,359) 526,382
Changes in equity for 2018: —Z— N\F&H
25
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREBERZHE
income for the year Yz B — — - (14,580) (14,580)
Equity settled share-based NEmEE 2
payment transaction &9 R 5 — — 6,800 — 6,800
Balance at 31 December R-ZB-N§
2018 +=A=+-H
& 373,264 710,477 6,800 (571,939) 518,602

Note: The Company has initially applied HKFRS 15 and
HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the transition
methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See note 1(c).

M R N\EFE—A—HAK
RABRERCEBIHH
SRR E 155 R(EB
B 75 3R 5 A BI) SE95R - 1R
BATERERBEERZE I
BEILREE - F2H
FEaE1(C) °
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22 EBAXRKEEGE)
(b) Share capital (b) B

Number
of ordinary
shares Amount

EERHA ok |
'000 $'000
T T

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: & R HE{80.107T 2

EER:
Authorised: JEE -
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZ-ZT—+tF K
—T-N\F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EZETREE -
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZ-T—+tF K
—T-N\F
+=-—A=+—H 3,732,638 373,264
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TRARE A A B RE U EL T B
receive dividends as declared from time to time and EMREMNRE - ITEER
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of AAREGHELLERER—FR
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with ERR-FIEERERERR
regard to the Company’s residual assets. AIFIERE EH E A RS HAL -
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves () EHEHEERAZR
(i) Share premium (i) BHEE
The application of the share premium account A& 10 % 18 AR 1) & A X 5
is governed by the Companies Law (Revised) SRS R AE (KIEE])
of the Cayman lIslands. BEE o
(ii) Special reserve (i) 43BIfEE
The special reserve arose from the reverse Frl#EE —TTMF
acquisition in December 2004. TZ AW R WM E
o
(iii) Translation reserve (iii) XBHE
The translation reserve comprises all foreign REFHEERBRRERE
exchange differences arising from the LA SN B 25 75 1 B 75 R 2%
translation of the financial statements of EENMEIINEZRE -
operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is & 48 0 IR B SR ()
dealt with in accordance with the accounting HEBRER -

policy set out in note 1(s).
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
for foreign investment enterprises, a portion of
the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is required to transfer to
the statutory reserve. The amounts of profits
transferred to the statutory reserve are
determined by the board of directors of the
subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted to use and
is not available for distribution.

(v) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(n)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders comprise share premium and
accumulated losses which in aggregate amounted to
approximately $139 million as at 31 December 2018
(2017: $153 million). Under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of
association and provided that immediately following
the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with
the Company’s articles of association, distributions
shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves,
including the share premium account, of the
Company.
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SHEZEHERIN

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. Further
details regarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern are disclosed in note 1(b).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings), less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital comprises all
components of equity, plus net debt.

During 2018, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2017, was to maintain the net
debt-to-capital ratio at an appropriate level. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group will
consider and may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was
0.01 and 0.99 as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
respectively.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry and country in
which customers operate and therefore significant
concentration of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the balance sheet date, the Group
has a certain concentration of credit risk as 26%
(2017: 21%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s five largest customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group
limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating or other criteria. Given these high
credit ratings, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. As at 31
December 2018, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 94% (2017: 69%) of
total cash and cash equivalents were deposited with
a financial institution in the PRC.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018.

Neither past due nor impaired 37 £ 380 HA =X (B
Less than one month past due B AR —1{E A
1 to 2 months past due BH— =W E A
Over 2 months and less than 161 A 6B B AR 1 A

5 months past due BN A EA
Over 5 months past due 11 B R 3B L 8 A
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(a)

EEREE)
HeRBESEEHEE
pEeEREFTEEE K
SEEBBERTFRRAFTA
BEEEFHKEMmZES
SR RElEREASZZ
FERRBR-ZEREFEEFTR
B REEEBHTIEET
REGHFFEEZEET - RN
= eI ER g Bl s e
H A&EEMNReEESE
BEEHBLBENUN(ZF
—tF:69% ) FEHRR — K
NRFPEHSERE Bt
EEZ-—EREMNEESERR

LA
)
ZoN

g

o

TR EBAKER-F
—N\E+ZA=+—RH2ZfE
ERBREESEEREZR

HEEEBEBZ2ER-
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHE
BE HAREE BFERE
% $'000 $'000
Tt Tt
— 17,491 —
— 470 —
S 8 S
— 288 —
100% 38,927 38,927
57,184 38,927
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23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past two years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see note 1(h)(i)(B) — policy applicable
prior to 1 January 2018). At 31 December 2017, no
trade receivables were determined to be impaired.
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that were not
considered to be impaired was disclosed in note
14(b).

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year is disclosed in
note 14(b).

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’'s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. Note 1(b) explains
management’s plans for managing liquidity needs of
the Group to enable it to continue to meet its
obligations as they fall due.
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(b)

EERE(E)
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BREBEARTHE LS X
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14(b) X 78 °
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23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 23 H¥EREEREBIEAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) BELHRBMERE
The following table details the remaining TRINEAEEZHITES
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of BMEEREERZATELN
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which HRFB ERERALOR
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows RBAeR(BEREBAOE
(including interest payments computed using Z AR ok 2 F B A K B
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates HRN&#EER HEZMEX
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest HERAEEEERTEER
date the Group can be required to pay: Z BHE & -

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHARRELR L AHRBRRLRL
More than ~ More than More than  More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
1 year or within within ~ More than amount at 31 1 year or within within -~ More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years December | on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
Rt+=A
-fRg  BE-F RERE =1-8 Ry BA-F  BARE
REAR BREA BEFA  HBIF aft REE Al BRFR  EBRERN  BALF
§'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 '000 $'000 i i $'000 §'000
T i i T i i T i r
Bank loans BIER 131,573 154,972 583,155 142,487 1,012,187 879,934 111,264 138,007 754,594 168,570 1,172,435 986,964
Other payables and accruals £ #3008 i 42
2R 941,306 - - - 941,306 941,306 54,771 = — — 54,771 54,771
Amounts due to related parties 7 B 7 5108 205,835 - - - 205,835 205,835 - 265,094 - - 265,094 265,094

1,278,714 154,972 583,155 142,487 2,159,328 2,027,075 166,041 403,101 754,594 168,570 1,492,306 1,306,835

Note: Further details regarding material uncertainties in Mzt : BEAARNSERELCE XS
respect of the Group’s ability to continue as a going ZRENZERTHMEZR
concern are set out in note 1(b). EZEE - #ERHE1D)
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23

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings. The Group’s bank
borrowings at 31 December 2018 were issued at
variable rates and therefore expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out
in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

23

2018
—E-N\%
Effective

interest rate

LIRS

MHEREERETMIAQAAE

(&)
(c)

Amount

F & &
MEERBE—HELBIAZ
AREIARRBESTERKE
T 35 Fl) 5 Bk & 1 % & AT 4 3k
MER - ANEE 2 ERRK
FEREABITEE -AEH
INER=/\EF = f ==
BZRITEERZEHF R
E AmcAEEEYER S
A ERER - AEBZF X
BE /B B BE 4 3 51
T X E()E °

(i) F=RER

2017
ZE-tF
Effective
interest rate Amount
ERA = i
$'000
T

&8
$'000
Fr

Net variable rate deposits/ BEER/ (HE)
(borrowings): R
Cash at bank RITRE 0.1% - 0.3% 881,071 0.1% - 0.3% 41,161
Bank loans RITER 4.61% - 4.9% (879,934)  4.61% - 4.9% (986,964)
Total net deposits/(borrowings) 3/ (B &) FEAE 1,137 (945,803)
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186

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's loss for the year
and decrease/increase the Group's
accumulated losses by approximately $11,370
(2017: decrease/increase the Group's profit for
the year and increase/decrease accumulated
losses by approximately $9,189,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for all non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management'’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as 2017.

(d) Currency risk

()

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through billings of (i) storage and
warehousing income and (ii) port and
transshipment income that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollars (“USD").
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23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)
(ii)

(iii)

Currency risk (continued)

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits
held in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in the functional currency of the entity taking
out the loan. Given this, management does
not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposures are expressed in
HKD, translated using the spot rate at the
balance sheet date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’'s

presentation currency are excluded.

23

MHEREERETMIAQAAE

(%)
(d)

B mEE(E)

(i)

(iii)

CRALEERAE

ERUABRER 2R
BNz BB FEZ
B RKERRITFR
AEESHEHREHA
&R - AR EE R
EA%E&%E'%%
FHEBEEE AT
ZHYKFE o

AEBEZFAARBEHIA
ERERZER 2R
EWETE - At B
Y TTEMANEEZE

HRERMEAZE
R -

AERBENEEEAR
TRIEAEERNEE

HEZRAGHAERDY
BEER N ERIIE
ZE%M\ﬁF&EL@Hﬁ
EfzE¥RARHE -
RIEZINZH - BB E
RERR 2EXREHE
BILIIR » B A B A
RBIEBHBERRS
AEEZINEHEI Bz
ERo

Trade and other receivables & 5 & H fh f& I 5518 1,713 1,918
Cash and cash equivalents R&KR&EEHEAE 4,193 2,832
Net exposure arising from ERREENBE
recognised assets and 2 A A3 R B
liabilities 5,906 4,750
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23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 23 H¥EREEREBIEAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
(d) Currency risk (continued) d E%¥RERE)
(iv) The following table indicates the instantaneous (iv) TRHEFIINEHEBEAR
change in the Group’s loss/(profit) after tax SEEEREANRREAHI
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if EERNE HHIRES
foreign exchange rates to which the Group (BEMEEMRARZ
has significant exposure at the balance sheet BREFETE)HAEE
date had changed at that date, assuming all BREiEERCiA)
other risk variables remained constant. (REFBREEDN

BB 28 -

2018 2017
“B-N\E “3-tf

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect Effect on (decrease) Effect Effect on
in foreign on loss accumulated in foreign on profit accumulated
exchange rates after tax losses ~ exchange rates after tax osses
HEER B#& g3t SME [E % Bk 25t
E#/(FE) BEY Faye | ER/(FR) BT E iRz 2
$'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000

Tr i i Tr
usD £ 5% (295) (295) 5% 238 (238)
(5%) 295 295 (5%) (238) 238
Results of the analysis as presented in the ERAINIRODNER
above table represent an aggregation of the REHEREERRN
instantaneous effects on each of the group I BE R R AT B I 1A
entities’ loss/profit after tax and accumulated BEMERBMBRET
losses measured in the respective functional At 251 2 BRI 12
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollar at B8, F R RETE R

the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet AT EBE -

date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the FRENTE BRINE
change in foreign exchange rates had been EXEBHEARNEN
applied to re-measure those financial EXEEREE B PH
instruments held by the Group which expose {5 2N 5% (B D R OB L
the Group to foreign currency risk at the SHERITA  BEX
balance sheet date, including inter-company & B 2 =) ) FE A B2 B W
payables and receivables within the Group MIE - AEFSERY
which are denominated in a currency other EEBUIINZEES
than the functional currencies of the lender or B DM ABEELE
the borrower. The analysis excludes SNRIBH B MR BAE
differences that would result from the B2y E%¥s =
translation of the financial statements of o ZnMIERAE -
foreign operations into the Group’'s TtFHERZEEE
presentation currency. The analysis is T

performed on the same basis for 2017.
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23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and 2017, except for the amounts
due to related parties which are unsecured, interest-
free and with no fixed terms of repayment. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their
fair values.

24 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
certain properties, which fall due as follows:

23 HBEAREBEREMIAQIAE

(&)
(e)

ARE

FMEsmMIAZ AResE
ER=ZTE—NER=ZZE—+t
cEap= El= P B2 N el
WESEXNNR - HEEER
RENRERETEEREZERN
BAEE S KIBRIN e AR ZE
B BEEZSEZAAE
WEEE -

24 REHEZH

(a)

AEBEREHEA
REER  AEERETA
BEzETHELEHRER
IHZAREERSHEREZ
FlEAME :

Within one year —FN
After one year but within

five years

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 3
years with fixed rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

—FRERFA

6,075 4,169
2,419 3,126
8,494 7,295

HODEBEE—2=F2
FHETERD  BRAEES T
goMAEROMERFBERA
He -
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25

190

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) The Group as lessor
The Group leases out certain dock and storage
facilities under operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year
was approximately $228 million (2017: $210
million). The leases are negotiated for a lease term
of 1 to 4 years (2017: 1 to 4 years). None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are
receivables as follows:

24

REBHERHE)

(b) FREHEREHEA
AEBREEEHERAS
THHARITFRE -

FAMRBR2EE REFFK
AR R228B (=8 —&
F:21087T) - HETIRE
—EOF(ZF—tF: —F
M) 2 FHETER - &F
HEMERRIAEE -

ANEBRETAIHE KL
HERKz ARRZEEE R
R

Within one year —F R
After one year but within

five years

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements in respect of (i) construction of a filling station
and (ii) terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $22 million (2017: $19
million).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital
expenditure (i) not contracted for but approved by the
board and (ii) not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port
and storage facilities (2017: $140 million).
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26

27

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

As disclosed in note 1(b), the Sellers entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement with the Purchaser, pursuant to
which the Sellers have conditionally agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser have conditionally agreed to purchase, the
entire equity interest in GD (Panyu) for a purchase price
of RMB1.56 billion (equivalent to approximately $1.78
billion). GD (Panyu) is principally engaged in the operation
of jetty and storage facilities in XHIT for handling and
storing oil, petroleum and liquid petrochemical products.
On 8 October 2018, the ordinary resolution to approve
the Transaction was duly passed by the shareholders of
the Company. It is expected that, the Group will record a
gain from the Transaction of over $1 billion. The exact
amount of the gain on the Transaction will be subject to
price adjustment pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, and, therefore may vary from the figure
provided above.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, GD (Panyu)
owns certain assets of the Group and will dispose all
assets, rights and liabilities other than the assets as
specified in the Sale and Purchase Agreement prior to
completion of the Transaction (“the Reorganisation”). The
assets of GD (Panyu), after taking into account the impact
of the Reorganisation, comprise the disposal group held
for sale. The Transaction is expected to be completed in
2019.

26

27
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27

192

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (continued)

The management assessed that the criteria for the
classification of the disposal group held for sale were
fulfilled prior to 31 December 2018 based on the fact and
circumstances specific to the Transaction. The assets
related to GD (Panyu) have been presented as assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale in aggregate in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018
and a single amount in the consolidated income
statement was presented in respect of GD (Panyu)'s net
profits for the year. The presentation of comparative
information in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 has been restated to show the discontinued
operations separately from continuing operations
following the requirements as set out in note 1(u).

27

FEHENEERKRLEEXR
(%)
EEEBREXZFRZEERA
BIERETHE  LEENDER
RIFELECREER _F—N\F
T_A=t—HREEX -R_F
—“N\E+=-A=+—R - R28f#
(BR)AEMNEEENKE/EE
BER2IA/DERFTFELEZ
HEMABNEE  MILERGER)
FEZENBNEABRERNE
—SRACEEY - FREE-F
— S R e n e SIS o
REHNEINERSED  ARER
BRM NPT B R E R AR LR E
EBEFBELEEBIFRBAT -

Assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December R—E—N\FE+=_A=+—80%
2018: BERFHELEZEE:
$'000
Tt
Property, plant and equipment (note 10) Y% B R& M (FEsE10) 211,027
Interest in land held for own use BELCEHEREERZ
under operating leases (note 10) I b4 2= (P 5E10) 37,940
248,967
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27  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED 27 FEHENEERAKLREXR
OPERATION (continued) (#&)
Analysis of the results of discontinued operations in HEB(ER)BEHENRIERLERE
relation to GD (Panyu) is as follows: BT :

Revenue A 3 152,447 163,441
Direct costs and operating BEERARKEEER
expense (77,583) (72,767)
Gross profit EF 74,864 90,674
Other income H iz 4 2,442 2,276
Administrative expenses THE A (29,964) (16,651)
Profit from operations R 47,342 76,249
Finance costs 87 765 B 7R 5(a) (6,202) (6,032)
Profit before taxation B B4 A E A 5 41,140 70,217
Income tax Fris 6(b) (5.976) 675
Profit for the year F A F 35,164 70,892
Note a: As at 31 December 2018, there was a cumulative eEa: RZZT—NFE+=-_A=+—
foreign currency translation gain of $93 million A HEeg(ER)EENE
recognised in other comprehensive income related to fib 2 TED U4 25 T TR R G AN
GD (Panyu). H 7259,3008 It °
Note b: As at 31 December 2018, the equity interest b : RZZE-—NF+_A=+—
attributable to non-controlling interests relating to H - ®m8g(FER)E@ENFE
GD (Panyu) is $48 million. 12 B HE 5 B 5 AR A /34,8008
=
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27 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED 27 BELHENEERAKLREEK
OPERATION (continued) (&)
Note c: Reconciliation to XHIT reportable segment assets and Mizfc: DNRAEINZ2HHMBEE

liabilities

R A B IR

Assets classified as held for sales

IS = = I A S ae =

as at 31 December 2018 ﬁ BRHFFLEEE 248,967
Add: Inter-segment receivables hn 5 26 FE W kI8 752,110
Assets of GD (Panyu) not classified @5@(%%) BEDIESIER

as held for sales FELE 494,789

XHIT reportable segment assets
as at 31 December 2018

R=ZF—NFE+=-A=+—HH
NRAICER 2D EBE E 1,495,866

Liabilities classified as held for sales R=_ZFE—NFE+=-_A=+—H

as at 31 December 2018
Add: Inter-segment payables

ﬁ%ﬁ%%f’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ% —
hn s 5 B0 FE A ROE 752,110

Liabilities of GD (Panyu) not classified @E(%%) BETIESDER

as held for sales BIELHE 139,952
XHIT reportable segment liabilities RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+—HH
as at 31 December 2018 NEA{EER 2/ S I EE 892,062
Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations in HER(FER)FUANRIEEEE
relation to GD (Panyu) is as follows: BrBREREDTAT :

Net cash generated
from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash generated
from discontinued operations
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EXEHHAFRES

FRE 583,031 44,080
KETEMARS

FRE (4,118) (3,888)
MEEHFARS

F R (121,059) (25,724)

IR EEIETS
Iﬁ% F R 457,854 14,468
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28 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 28 R=-Z-—-N\NF+=-A=1+—HM®H
2018 AAEEMEEEER

Non-current asset ERBEE

Interests in subsidiaries RETBAR 2 s 555,253 ¢ 602,174

Current assets REEE

Prepayments and other receivables  FE{ ZUIE K H fth & I 5B — 356

Cash and cash equivalents RekBESFMEEE 466 57
I 466 PESetiat: i

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals Htb eI 3 IE REHRE A 4,561 1,935

Amount due to a subsidiary FE S — A BT /B 2 &) R IE 32,556 —
A 3717 1,935

Net current liabilities RBEEEE ~ (38651) (1,522)

Total assets less current liability #AEERREB A& 518,602 600,652

Non-current liability FRBAE

Amount due to a related party JE S — % B B 5 5RIE — 74,270

NET ASSETS EEFE 518,602 526,382

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRR#E

Share capital % 7% 373,264 373,264

Reserves 16 1 145,338 153,118

TOTAL EQUITY RS 518,602 526,382

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZZE—NEF=ZA-_+BEZE
directors on 26 March 2019. EoHtE R -
Yang Dong Zhang Lei
BX RE
Director Director
EE EE
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SHEZEHERIN

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2018, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Vand Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
This entity does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET

DATE

(@) After the balance sheet date, the Group has
announced and commenced the implementation of
an employees termination plan under GD (Panyu) in
relation to the Transaction in February 2019.
Employee termination benefits of RMB55 million
(equivalent to $63 million) were recognised after 31
December 2018. No termination benefits payable
has been recognised in these financial statements in
this regard.

(b)  Subsequent to the balance sheet date and up to the
date of approval of the financial statements, new
interest bearing borrowings of approximately
RMB659 million (equivalent to $752 million), of
which RMB27 million (equivalent to $30.8 million) is
repayable within one year from the balance sheet
date, have been granted by a bank to repay the
existing Group’s bank loans of $752 million for
Reorganisation purpose under the Transaction.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of
the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note
1(c).

Additionally, the presentation of comparative information
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 has been
restated to show the discontinued operations separately
from continuing operations following the requirements as
set out in note 1(u).
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EERBRARERA

= N = A =B i
EREAEENEET AT KK
LI R% 77 AVand  Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Limited = H R H B
BERESEMKY - HEBTER
BB ISR AR QA RIFE -

EEEBRAASEHRNERAR

=I1H

(@) REBEEBEBEXRH%Z A5H
ER=ZZE—NAF-AAHIL
FABREREEE(ER)EBER
SHEEBEHTE - EEB
B 18 F & A R #55,000,000
7t (18 & 763,000,0007T) A
—E—NFE+=-A=+—8H
BRER -t A BER
72 5 B R R TSR IR N Y B
BAE A o

b) REEBEXRHEBEREZH
BHREMER  FHOFEE
RO AR K659 T (FHE R
728 L) E AR AR
2,700% T (8 & 73,0808
TBAREBEEBFERA R
—FREEZE FTHFTEEX
HIBTR T U ERAEER
ARIEITERIS2ET B
NESEHBH -

LEBREF
R—_FE-—NF-—A—-—HBAKEH
RERCE BB REERDFS
5t RCKE B M 5| E ER)DFER -
RIFFMEZNBRET S XESED
R EF - BASTEREFHHE
—FHBRWEIQOHE -

o EREE—_T—EF+ A
St HLEFEHEBREHNZT
ERES - ARBEMENAEHA
ERBRIIELEXEBRSELE
EBORER -
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018
Up to the date of approval of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over
income tax treatments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BB RS AR

2015-2017 Cycle

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the HKFRS 16 which may have an impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. As the
assessment completed to date is based on the
information currently available to the Group, the actual
impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ, and further impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report the six months ending 30 June 2019. The
Group may also change its accounting policy elections,
including the transition options, until the standard is
initially applied in that financial report.
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(BAEMBRELERDE 165 HE
EE(BRYBBRE2ELZES)
R  MEHEEZ THRE K

|—F—AFE
TRz EERE

EEMERBE-Z-NF+=
B=t-BLEEHRERZE
Rl HATEARBEAEER 2
&

BEAUBHRRA  BEEHHA
SEEMS A FRARR
B BRBE-_E—N\%+_7
S+—BEFEERER  ThRE
SRR T TR 2% o 3% % A 4 B
EERRMZ BT FEEARRE
mE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
R T5 A HR=%R
BZETHBEN

1 January 2019
—F¥-NF—A—H

1 January 2019
—F-NF—A—H

1 January 2019
—E-NF—A—H

AEBIEREFEZEER ] £
ARRERNERERNMBESRE
Rz#E&-BR - AEEZHR
(BREMBREEADFISRZE
TrHHAREHEEMBRRE
(FE - TXRE—FIWEARZ
FE - mNES TR ZABIIRE
AEBBREABSZERET BEX
Rz ELEAELE2ERTER
REEAEMAR  MRZEFEANER
FEANRAEEBE _T—LFAX
A=t+B1ENEAZ+ BB H
EH AIREERBALE—THE K
SETAREE B H & A BRE
B BRAFKEE EE%XFEL
BRERRMBREA -
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted,
lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases
and operating leases. Instead, subject to practical
expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise
and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a
corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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EEMGERBZE-_ZE—N\E+=
B=+—HILEEEHRERZE
T HATEARREURER Y
& ()

(BEBMBREE)E165 - HE
M FE1(Q AT EE - A& E B Al
BHESAMEMERKENE -
WRBEHEENET @ §ZEFHER
HEUATRFEAAR - ZEEELSH
MAFTYATHE  HEiAl{ERX
i

BEE LM HRE ER)F165
BAEREZELEARBERLY
RSN EZEEARN TN - A
i —BRACE B E RS EL)
£165%  FEAKTBESBEM
ERGEHEE Ak XERES
TERRIR - A AR AR R
RrEREMOARIEREGEREM
EestmEE  BRZBELORS
B AEARZERERRBEER
HNREERALERERE &
BRI R [(ERE B E - K1)
THRAZEENAER  AEAS
BRAEEREEBRMELNNE
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HARERREERRBRLEHE
HFFELEMHEHERMBRAEE -
EREROERDI S - AEARE
BT et R ERREHHE
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the income statement over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in note 25(a), at 31
December 2018 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $8,494,000 (2017: $7,295,000) for properties, the
majority of which is payable within 1 year after the
balance sheet date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If
this practical expedient is chosen, the Group will apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts
that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. If the practical expedient is not chosen, the
Group will need to reassess all of its decisions about
which existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group elects
to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a modified
retrospective method of recognising a cumulative-effect
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date
of initial application, the Group may or may not need to
restate comparative information for any changes in
accounting resulting from the reassessment. The Group
has not yet decided whether it will choose to take
advantage of this practical expedient, and which transition
approach to be taken.
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- HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

x - I T

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUI\/II\/IARY
EFUBHRE

Year ended 31 December
e S paahile iy

2016
—F- “E-NF z
(Restated (Restated (Restated (Restated
(=3 (B&5 (B =7 (=3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr T Tr
RESULTS ES |
Continuing operations FERSEER
Revenue KA 107,412 112,885 98,116 110,712 141,556
Loss before taxation B 1 P B 18 (121,088)  (108561)  (106,820) (68,298) (89,516)
Income tax FT{S — — — — (9,099)
Loss for the year ENER (121,288) (108,561) (106,820) (68,298) (98,615)
Discontinued operations RIECERY
Profit for the year FERE T 5,922 8,288 27,512 70,892 35,164
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(ER)/BH (115,366) (100,273) (79,308) 2,594 (63,451)
Attributable to: FEfG
Equity shareholders of the ARARR
Company (108,814) (94,469) (75,611) 355 (62,406)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (6,552) (5,804) (3,697) 2,239 (1,045)
(115,366) (100,273) (79,308) 2,59 (63,451)
At 31 December
M+=A=t+-A

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREHE
Total assets BEAT 1,710,331 1,495,723 1,283,331 1,315,233 1,954,760
Total liabilities AELE 1,507,552 1,409,944 1,289,830 1,306,835 2,039,142
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8fE)FE 202,779 85,779 (6,499) 8,398 (84,382)
Non-controlling interests FERER 27,744 20,564 15,729 19,154 (7,590)
Total equity/(deficit) AR AR
attributable to equity i/ (B4)
shareholders of the
Company 175,035 65,215 (22,228) (10,756) (76,792)
Total equity/(deficit) B/ (B4 202,779 85,779 (6,499) 8,398 (84,382)
Notes: B 5
() The presentation of comparative information in the previous years (i) BAEFELRARMNZSE RS
has been restated to show the discontinued operations separately BRI E X ELEEE D A
from continuing operations. BR ©
(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 (i) A£BEER-_Z—N\F—AF—8B9F
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative FE &8 B 7% = E RSB 1555 R BB
information is not restated. B 75 R S £ R SE505% - IRIBFTE M B
R EBRERILARES -
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